N\~

EEEST KAWEAH

GROUNDWATER SUSTAINABILITY AGENCY

NOTICE

SPECIAL MEETING OF THE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Monday, February 28, 2022 at 2:00 p.m.

Board of Directors and Staff at the
Exeter Museum (upstairs)
125 S. B Street, Exeter, CA 93221

COVID-19 Protocol — Via Remote Login is available at
Go to: www.Zoom.com and click “Join a Meeting” (top right)
Enter Meeting ID: 864 4465 0534 and then passcode 094322
Or call: 1-669-900-6833, then enter the Meeting ID and Passcode when prompted
If you have challenges getting on the remote meeting, text your name to 559-303-4150.

In accordance with the Governor’s Executive Orders (N-25-20 and N-29-20) the EKGSA Board of Director's meeting can be held remotely. Individuals
attending the physical meeting site are required to wear an appropriate facial barrier (face mask) and social distance (six feet apart). If members of the
public have any problems connecting on the established electronic access, please contact the Lindmore Irrigation District office at 559-562-2534.

AGENDA

1. Roll Call by Secretary
2. Approve the Agenda
3. Pledge of Allegiance
ADOPTION OF ALTERNATIVE TELECONFERENCING REQUIREMENTS

Reconsideration and appropriate action regarding findings needed to utilize alternative teleconferencing
requirements during a state of emergency pursuant to Government Code section 54953, as amended by
Assembly Bill 361. The Board will be asked to determine that (a) the proclaimed state of emergency arising
from COVID-19 continues to exist and (b) the state of emergency continues to directly impact the ability of the
Board members to meet safely in person.

4. Public Comment

5. Minutes: The Board will review and consider adopting the minutes provided by the Secretary from the
January 24, 2022 Regular Board meeting.

6. Administration

a. Consider updating the EKGSA Logo

b. Multi-Benefit Land Repurposing Program ($10,000,000 Department of Conservation — GF)
- Memorandum of Understanding with the othe GSAs and SRT (Hagman — Consider Signature)
- Grant Support Letter

County of Tulare — City of Lindsay — Exeter ID — Ivanhoe ID — Lindsay Strathmore ID — Lindmore ID — Stone Corral ID
Mailing address: P.O. Box 908 Lindsay, CA 93247
Physical Address: 315 E. Lindmore Street Lindsay, CA 93247
Phone 559-562-2534

1



\lr

ST KAWEAH

oo

Appoint Representative on the Kaweah Subbasin Management Team Committee
Staffing Updates (Hagman)

Payments: Consider Ratifying Payments made to meet the obligations of the EKGSA
(Hagman/Bennett)

Prop 68: WCB-RCIS - Update on status and activity (Hagman)

Prop 68: Basin Planning Grant — Update on status and activity: SkyTem, Monitoring Well Data
Collection, Well Metering Pilot Project (Hunter/Hagman)

Prop 68: Impelementation Grant (MKGSA Admin) — Update (Hagman)

7. Groundwater Sustainability Plan Implementation:

a.
b.
c.

e.

Approve Notice of Exemption for EKGSA Montioring Well Sites
Technical Advisory Committee Report (Klinchuch, Hagman)
Subbasin Report (Peltzer, Hagman): Annual Report, DMS, Modeling, Water Marketing (financial
participation), etc.
GSP Implementation — Update to Board on Plan implementation (monitoring systems, projects,
management actions)
- Ad Hoc - LandIQ-ET (Hunter)
- Monitoring Network (Hagman/Hunter)
- Rules and Regulations “Term Sheet” (Hughes/Komar)
- Summary of deficiencies on the GSP “Incomplete” Designation (Schedule—Klinchuch/Hagman)
-  Stakeholder Input (Hunter)
-  Status of Projects/MA direction by Board (TAC/AC Role — Hagman)
OTHER

8. Closed Session

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL — EXISTING LITIGATION: [Government Code Section 54956.9]

— Domenigoni Ranch Central, LLC v. East Kaweah Groundwater Sustainability Agency, et al., Tulare
County Superior Court Case No, VCU 285398

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL — POTENTIAL LITIGATION: [Government Code Section 54956.9

(d)(2)] - Number of Potential Cases: One

9. Schedule Next meeting — Next regularly scheduled meeting is April 25, 2022.

10. Adjournment

N



EAST KAWEAH GROUNDWATER SUSTAINABILITY AGENCY
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

MINUTES FOR THE REGULAR MEETING ON JANUARY 24, 2022
The East Kaweah Groundwater Sustainability Agency (“EKGSA”) Board of Directors duly met
for a Regular meeting on Monday, January 24, 2022, via video/phone conference and in person —
COVID -19 protocol.
OPEN SESSION: Convened at 3:00 p.m. with a quorum.

1. DIRECTORS PRESENT: Buldo, Cerros, Ferrara, George, Hornung, Micari, Milanesio,
Roberts, Watson

DIRECTORS ABSENT: Peltzer
OTHERS PRESENT: Michael Hagman, Executive Director; Chris Hunter, Program
Manager; Joe Hughes, Legal Counsel; Matt Klinchuch, Consulting Engineer; Cruz

Romero, Staff Engineer; Kathy Bennett, Senior Analyst; and various members of the
committees and public.

2. APPROVE THE AGENDA: Motion to approve the agenda was made by Director
Hornung, seconded by Director Micari, and carried by the following vote:
AYES: Buldo, Cerros, Ferrara, George, Hornung, Micari, Milanesio, Watson
NOES: None
ABSTAIN: None
ABSENT: Peltzer, Roberts

3. PUBLIC COMMENT: Director George discussed having a potential Ad Hoc Committee
to review Land IQ. Discussion moved to Item 7.c.

4. MINUTES: Motion to adopt and ratify the minutes provided by the Secretary from the
December 3, 2021, Special Board Meeting and the December 20, 2021 Special Board
Meeting was made by Director George, seconded by Director Hornung, and carried by the
following vote:

AYES: Buldo, Cerros, Ferrara, George, Hornung, Micari, Milanesio, Roberts,
Watson.
NOES: None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: Peltzer

[O¥]



5.

ADMINISTRATION:

AYES:

NOES:

Shared Resources Agreement: Executive Director reviewed the second Addendum
to Agreement for Management and Administrative Services. This second
addendum was developed after the Board requested that Lindmore ID hire a
“Program Manager.” The increase of compensation for the hiring of the Program
Manager affects each of the next two contract periods for 2022 & 2023. The
Executive Director reviewed that the compensation would increase to $515,000
($128,750 per quarter) in FY 2022 and $529,000 ($132,250 per quarter) in FY
2023. A motion to approve the second Addendum to the Shared Resources
Agreement was made by Director George, seconded by Director Ferrara, and
carried on the following vote:

Buldo, Cerros, Ferrara, George, Hornung, Micari, Milanesio, Roberts,
Watson

None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: Peltzer

b.

AYES:

NOES:

FY2022 Annual Budget: Executive Director reviewed the amendment to the
FY2022 Annual Budget noting the Board approved $145,000 in additional
payments to Lindmore ID for the “Program Manager” position. The revenue for
this position will come from fines collected from landowners exceeding their
groundwater allocation in the EKGSA. A motion to approve the amended budget
was made by Director Ferrara, seconded by Director Roberts, and carried on the
following vote:

Buldo, Cerros, Ferrara, George, Hornung, Micari, Milanesio, Roberts,
Watson

None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: Peltzer

AYES:

Resolution 2022-01: Executive Director discussed a grant that is available from the
State of California that is for groundwater basin/subbasins. Greater Kaweah GSA
will manage the grant and all 3 GSAs will do a resolution. This resolution is for
the application for a grant and a spending plan will be submitted. A motion to
approve Resolution 2022-01 approving application for a Basin Grant was made by
Director Micari, seconded by Director Watson, and carried by the following vote:

Buldo, Cerros, Ferrara, George, Hornung, Micari, Milanesio, Roberts,
Watson.

I~



NOES:

None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: Peltzer

Financial Reports: Senior Analyst provided the unaudited 4th Quarter 2021
financial reports and Executive Director reviewed them with the Board.

Payments: Senior Analyst provided the EKGSA check register. After some brief
discussion on the payments, the Executive Director noted the check and invoice
copies were not available at the meeting for review. This item was tabled until the
next Board meeting.

Proposition 68 — WCB Grant (RCIS): Executive Director reported on the status of
the RCIS effort. Last month it was noted that the RCIS was submitted for the
completeness review and received confirmation that it is technically complete.
Now, the RCIS comment period has concluded and there were no comments
received. There was a comment from MKGSA to minimize or eliminate any
takeover of the RCIS to be used against us and that is being worked on. All reports
and request for reimbursement are in. All activities are on timeline.

Proposition 68 — Basin Planning Grant: Executive Director provided an update on
the administration and projects. Staff and Consultants are working on an
amendment to the Grant for a 30-day extension to complete another basin project
that will replace the videoing of key basin wells.

Proposition 68 — Update on Implementation Grant: Executive Director reminded
the Board that this grant is awarded to the Mid Kaweah GSA and focuses on DAC
benefits and reviewed the two projects that we had that qualified — Lewis Creek
Re-charge and the Mariposa Basin connection to Lindmore ID.

GROUNDWATER SUSTAINABILITY PLAN IMPLEMENTATION:

AYES:

Technical Advisory Committee Efforts: Klinchuch and Hagman reported on the
most recent TAC meetings since the last Board meeting with the Land IQ and ET
parcel reporting being reviewed. The subject of concern for “rules and regulations”
effort was brought up. Chris Hunter will forward his draft to legal counsel and after
review they will provide this to the Board to consider adoption. Also, there was
discussion on the GSP not being approved by the State and who the projects in the
GSP benefit. After considerable discussion, a motion to direct the TAC and
Advisory Committees to develop a list of projects with management actions and
(or?) a cost benefit analysis was made by Director Micari, seconded by Director
Hornung and carried by the following vote:

Buldo, Cerros, Ferrara, George, Homung, Micari, Milanesio, Roberts,
Watson.

(&)}



NOES: None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: Peltzer

b. Subbasin Efforts: Hagman and Klinchuch provided an update on subbasin
activities.
c. GSP Implementation: Hagman and Klinchuch provided an update on

Implementation. Mike George Land IQ discussion ending with an Ad Hoc
Committee to look at Land IQ. Michele Staples also giving public comment on the
magnitude of problem with Land IQ.

d. Update Board of Directors direction to Staft/ TAC:

g CLOSED SESSION: Board went into closed session at 5:33 p.m. and after discussion,
came out of closed session at 6:27 p.m. There was no reportable action.

8. SCHEDULE NEXT MEETING:
The Executive Director reported that the next regularly scheduled board meeting
will be held on April 25, 2022 however a Special Board meeting should be set to
review the rules and regulations. Special Board of Directors’ meeting is scheduled
for February 28, 2022 at 2:00 p.m. to 4:00 p.m.

9. ADJOURNMENT:

The meeting was adjourned at 6:27 p.m.

Michael D. Hagman
Secretary, East Kaweah GSA

(o)}



PROPOSED AND OLD LOGOS

EAST KAWEAH

GROUNDWATER SUBTAINABILITY AGHENCY

Lorem Ipsurn dolos sit amet, consectatur adiplscing elit, sed do elusmod
empar Incididunt ut labore ¢t daolore magna dliqua. Ut enlm ad minim
EA ST K AW EA H venlam, quis nostrud | exercitation ullameo_laboris nist ut aliquip ex ea
cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc

commodo consequat, Duls aute lnute dotor In roprehenderit In veluptato velit
essa ciffum dolore eu fuglat nulia pardatur, E sint cupid:

non prokdont, sunt in culpa qul officla deserunt moliit andm id et IBborum.

EAST KAWEAH

nnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnn

Old logo below new one above

\lr
ST KAWEAH

GROUNDWATER SUSTAINABILITY AGENCY

I~



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

COORDINATION ON LAND REPURPOSING SOLUTIONS FOR THE KAWEAH
SUBBASIN

THIS MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (MOU) is made by and between the
Greater Kaweah Groundwater Sustainability Agency, the Mid-Kaweah Groundwater
Sustainability Agency, the East Kaweah Groundwater Sustainability Agency, Kaweah Delta
Water Conservation District, and Sequoia Riveriands Trust (collectively referred to as “Parties”™).

WHEREAS, the Parties operate and are located within the Tulare Lake Hydrologic
Region, San Joaquin Valley Groundwater Basin, Kaweah Subbasin, a groundwater Subbasin
recognized by the California Department of Water Resources (DWR) Bulletin 118 (2003) as
Groundwater Basin Number 5-22.11 (Kaweah Subbasin);

WHEREAS, the Parties acknowledge that the three Groundwater Sustainability
Agencies (GSAs) were formed within the Kaweah Subbasin (collectively referred to as “Kaweah
GSAs”), and the Kaweah GSAs have each submitted Groundwater Sustainability Plans (“GSPs”,
or collectively “Kaweah GSPs”) to the DWR to manage groundwater for a portion of the
Kaweah Subbasin;

WHEREAS, the Kaweah GSAs are now implementing their submitted GSPs;

WHEREAS, the Kaweah GSAs have each identified agricultural land fallowing in their
GSP as one of the Management Actions to reduce groundwater demand and reach sustainability;

WHEREAS, there has been an effort to create a Regional Conservation Investment
Strategy (RCIS) for the Kaweah Subbasin that could be a tool to support the implementation of
the Kaweah GSPs by identifying conservation and habitat enhancement actions, and provide a
path for financial incentives to working landowners that voluntarily participate in groundwater
sustainability projects and management actions that also provide habitat and conservation values;

WHEREAS, the Kaweah Delta Water Conservation District, has many years of
experience managing surface and groundwater resources, and implementing projects for multi-
benefits;

WHEREAS, Sequoia Riverlands Trust has many years of experience managing and
conserving agricultural lands for multi-benefits;

WHEREAS, the Parties have met and see value in working together to consider viable
options to establish model projects for repurposing and managing repurposed lands;

WHEREAS, the Parties acknowledge that careful coordination and collaboration

amongst the Kaweah GSAs, Kaweah Delta Water Conservation District, and Sequoia Riverlands
Trust could increase the effectiveness of a partnership (non-business) amongst the Parties;

Page 1 of 5

|oo



AND WHEREAS, the Parties acknowledge a mutual desire to take all reasonable steps
and actions necessary to maintain local control of groundwater resources in the Kaweah
Subbasin.

NOW THEREFORE, the Parties agree to the following:

1. [Purpose. This MOU will facilitate a cooperative and ongoing working relationship
amongst the Parties that will help allow the Kaweah GSAs to comply with the Sustainable

Groundwater Management Act (SGMA) by% _..--| Commented [AF1]: Should we incorporate a goal to reduce T
: : P PO s coul : antad an lands o ground d d and conservation habitat? This would

A. Exploring mult}-beneﬁt projects that could be lmplgmented on lands . el iteet G cFTons o fhat We dun T avkaden nth BRIV

fallowed or retired to reduce groundwater demand, increase conservation, could also aim to establish a goals and principles d that is

and/or enhance habitat attached as an appendix to this MOU

B. Applying for and obtaining grant funds to pay all or a portion of costs to
do any or all of the following:
i. Develop land repurposing options.
ii. Develop agreement(s) with landowner(s) to allow for the management of
the landowner’s fallowed land.
iii. Appropriately compensate the landowner for the repurposing of their land.
C. Developing a model for land repurposing in the Kaweah Subbasin
facilitated by the Parties.
D. Interfacing with California Department of Fish & Wildlife (CDFW) as
may be necessary concerning compliance requirements.
E. fUpon agreement of all parties, new partners can be incorporated as

partners to this MOU.| ST __.--{ Commented [LR2]: This is new |

2. Expenditures. The Parties intend to apply for grant funding, and nothing in this MOU
constitutes a commitment by any Party to expend non-grant funding.

3. Grants. Each of the Parties may apply for grant funding and shall coordinate with all
Parties ahead of applying for any grant funds. If the projects or proposal being put forth for
grant funds achieves the goals and objectives of this MOU, each party shall provide support for
the grant funding pursuit, unless all parties agree that the applying party can proceed without
support.

4, Other Agreements. The Parties acknowledge that multiple agreements exist
between the Parties’ Member agencies or other entities within the basin. The Parties agree to
respect those agreements to the fullest extent possible and adhere to said policies as feasible in
efforts to reach sustainability in the Kaweah Subbasin.

5. Indemnity. Each Party agrees that it will be responsible for its own acts and the results
thereof, shall not be responsible for the acts of the other Parties hereto or the results thereof, and
each Party shall indemnify the other Parties from and against liabilities resulting from said
indemnifying Party’s acts.

6. Insurance. Each Party shall insure its activities in connection with this MOU and shall
keep in force and maintain insurance or self-insurance as follows: general liability, business

Page 2 of §

[{e]



automobile liability, workers compensation and such other insurance as may be necessary to
provide coverage for its performance under this MOU.

7. Term. This MOU shall remain in effect for a term of 5 years, to be automatically
renewed unless terminated in writing with upon 90-days’ notice by any Party.

8. Authorization. Each signatory of this MOU is authorized to execute this MOU on behalf
of the Party for which he signs. Each Party has legal authority to enter into this MOU and to
perform all obligations under this MOU.

9. Amendment. This MOU may be amended or modified in writing and executed by each of
the Parties.

10. Construction and Interpretation. This MOU was finalized through negotiations of the
Parties. Each signatory Party has had a full and fair opportunity to review and revise the terms
herein. As a result, the normal rules of construction that any ambiguities are to be interpreted
against the draft Party shall not apply in the construction or interpretation of this MOU.

11. Third Party Beneficiaries. This MOU shall not create any right of interest in any non-
Party or in any member of the public as a third-party beneficiary.

12. Counterparts. This MOU may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which
shall be deemed to be an original, but all of which together shall constitutes but one and the same
instrument.

13. Notices. All notices, requests, demands or other communications required or permitted
under this MOU shall be in writing unless provided otherwise in this MOU, and shall be deemed
to have been duly given and received on: (i) the date of service if personally served or served by
electronic mail or facsimile transmission on the Party to whom notice is to be given at the
address(es) below; (ii) on the first day after mailing, if mailed by Federal Express, U.S. Express
Mail, or other similar overnight courier service; or (iii) on the third day after mailing if mailed to
the Party to whom notice is to be given by first class mail, registered certified as follows:

TO:

Eric Osterling, General Manager

Greater Kaweah Groundwater Sustainability Agency
2975 N. Farmersville Blvd.

Farmersville, CA 93223

eosterling@kdwcd.com

TO:

Aaron Fukuda, General Manager

Mid-Kaweah Groundwater Sustainability Agency
6826 Avenue 240

Tulare, CA 93274

akf@tulareid.org

Page 3 of 5



TO:

Mike Hagman, Executive Director

East Kaweah Groundwater Sustainability Agency
315 E. Lindmore St.

Lindsay, CA 93247

mhagman(@lindmoreid.com

TO:

Logan Robertson Huecker, Executive Director
Sequoia Riverlands Trust

427 S. Garden St.

Visalia, CA 93277

logan@sequoiariverlands.org

Page 4 of 5



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties enter this MOU as of the date(s) executed below.

East Kaweah Groundwater Sustainability
Agency

By:

Chairman Don Mills
By:

Secretary Eric Osterling
Date:

Mid Kaweah Groundwater Sustainability
Agency

By:

Chairperson
By:

Secretary
Date:

Sequoia Riverlands Trust

By:

Chairman Michael Chrisman
By:

Secretary Julie Allen
Date:

Greater Kaweah Groundwater Sustainability
Agency

By:

Chairperson
By:

Secretary
Date:

Kaweah Delta Water Conservation District

By:

Chairperson
By:

Secretary
Date:

Page 5 of 5



| :abed Wd S¢'v e ¢eoi/ve/e

00°00¢€ wnasnpy p Asjle9 Yy snoyunoy Jojex3 caiLic orvL
00'v6 "ou| ‘suuojndwo) elwoyed A4V 6ePl
LyLv9'6 "Ju| ‘pieydjld B 1sorold rAAVITA 154
ey’ Ol pueT caiolL LEVL
66'vZ9'LL Jaupjo9 ‘sjeleNaq ‘uiely 22/9/1 9EvL
00°059°'9 uoNAH siuuaQg 2e/alL Sevl
Z20z ‘gz Aaenuqag :pajeq L10L9'S "2u| ‘paeydiud B 1S0AOId cciolL 1254
e LvLiLE joulsig uonebua) aiowpur (RAVXALA] cevl
paubig 68'62Z'S Jaupjo9 ‘sjeleNaq ‘uiafy XAVRATA® el
VSOM3 3y Jo spasu ay} }osw 0} papiaoid 000992 "Ju| ‘say0}g @ sauor Q| (XAVRAA® levl
sjonpoud 10 $891M8S 10} YSOMT 8y} Jsulebe L \
Swie|d 1o} ate sjuawAed yons jey) saibe op ‘preog 18 {4 0717 'seAjuadu| [ejusuuosAug (XAVXALA" oevl
ay} Jo aj0A e Aq pue JajsiBal siy) uo pajejouue 00'000'0€ Jouysig uogebiu) aiowpui Le/eict 6zl
sjuswdhed ay) pamainal aaey (ySOMI) Aousby o
3___DNC_Nuw3w Jajempunods) yeame) }sej ay) e L 0_ pue Lererech 274 4"
Aq pajutodde Buiaq (reyd-a31A) elessag aor | 05261 1oupjo9 ‘afeleNaq ‘Bl \Z/EIZ) 1zvi
2.°98S'6 "Ju| ‘seY0IS @ SBuor DI Le/eicy 144"
00°00! wnesniy g AJsj|e9 Yy 8SNOYUNOY 18}ax3 Le/eitL 744"
99°0/8'L ONS34d AINN 31VLS VINJO4ITVD Leieicl 1744’
zzZ0Z ‘8z Aienuqag :pajeq SLIY6'EL "0u| ‘pieydjlid B 1S0A0Id Le/ergL bl
62'9/6'C suononpold WIN LerereL cerl
paubig €€°80S'Y sajeloossy g Aswobjuop LC/OL/LL levl
VSOM3 8y} Jo spasu ay) jesw 26'906'0€ JoussIq uonebiu| asowpul L2/0L/LL ocylL
0} papiaoid syonpoud 10 S82IAISS 10} YSOMT B} o
)suiebe swiie)d Joj ase sjuswAed yons jey) asibe ceiers Ol pue Le/oLiLL 61vL
op ‘pieog 3y} Jo 8joA e Aq pue Jaysifal siy) uo 00°06L°Cl "ou| ‘say01g ® sauor 4| L2/oL/LL 1:154"
pajejouue sjuawied ay) pamaiaal aaey (YSOM3I)
Kouaby Ajijigeureisng J8)empunols) yeame)y| iseg 00°009 wnasniy 9 Ausj|e9 Wy 9SNOYHNOY J9)ax3 L2/oL/LL Livl
ay Aq pajutodde Bujaq (11eyD) oisauepy p3 ‘| 99'2¥0°C 977 'S8AUSOU| [BJUSWIUOIAUT LZ/OL/LL oLyl
€1°0L1°02 "ouj ‘paeydild @ 1S0A0Id LZ/0L/LL Sivl
junowy a9hed ajeq #29YH

‘ajeq Aq s! JopJo Joday :sapnjoul eusiu) Jalji4
2202 ‘82 424 0} L.Z0Z ‘0L AON wo.4 polidd ay} 104
J9)s169y Yo9yoH

VSO Yeamey| Jse3



2 :abeg

Wd Se:v 18 Zeoc/ve/e

Zzoz ‘gz Aenuqad :pajeq

paubig

VSOMX3 8y} Jo spasu ay} J9aw o) papiaoid
sjonpoud Jo sadIAI8s 10} YSOMT ay) Jsuiebe
swiejo Joj aJe sjuswdhed yons jey) aaibe op ‘pieog
ay) Jo ajoA e Aq pue JajsiBai siy) uo pajejouue
sjusuifed ay) pamalral aaey {ySOM3) Aousby
A)jjiqeule}sng Ja}empunols) yeame) Jseg ay)
Aq pajuiodde Buiaq (1eyn-3dIA) BIRLID4 30 ¢

220z ‘gz Aueniqay :pajeq 20°82¢£°862 lejoL
paubig 000982 eounsu| callie *) 44"
VYSON3 84} Jo spasu ay) Jeswl 00°00¢ wnasny ® Augjleg Uy asnoyunod Jajex3 acilic Svvl

0} papiro.d sjonpoud 10 S32IAIBS 10} YSOHT 8y} )
ysuiebe swie|d 1o} ase sjuswAed yons jey) saibe 00°00¢- wnasniy g A1s||e9 By 8SnoyUN0J sejex3 cellie AOVYL
op ‘pJeog ay} Jo 8joA e Aq pue JajsiBal siy} uo 65°208'c "Ou| ‘flep @ Juld [euoIsSajoId ceiLle 12241

pajejouue sjuswAed ay) pamalral aaey (YSOMT)

Aouaby >u___nmc_muwsw J8)eMpunoIS) Yeamey| Ise] 66°GPS'SY oussiq uonebiu) ssowpui [AAAIA chvl
auy Aq pajuiodde Buiaq (11ey9) orissuepy p3 ‘| T LEY'L Ol pue’ zziLz vl
00'v0S'} Jaupjo9 ‘sjejeNaq ‘ule]y cclLic (B44%
unowy 29fed ajeq #>399Yy9H

‘aleq Aq si Japio poday 1sapnioul BUBLY J3)14
2202 ‘8Z 994 0} 1LZ0Z ‘0L AON wou4 poliad ay) Jo4
1938169y Mo9yoH

VSO Yeamey jseq



N\

L~
EEST KAWEAH

GROUNDWATER SUSTAINABILITY AGENCY

MEMORANDUM TO THE BOARD

TO: Board of Directors

Michael D. Hagman, Executive Director
FROM: Christopher R. Hunter, Program Manager
DATE: February 18, 2022

SUBJECT: Staff Report for February 2022 Special Board Meeting

6.

ADMINISTRATION

f. Prop 68 Basin Planning Grant: The Prop 68 Planning Grant consists of two funding
categories ((a) -Grant Agreement Administration), (b)GSP Development) with funding
category b containing three tasks. Task 1 — SkyTem Geophysical Survey and Mapping
has been completed with all deliverables achieved. Task 3 — Well Metering Pilot Project
(Fresno State) is complete, and staff is expecting delivery of the report any day. Staff will
work with Fresno State to create landowner outreach opportunities to share the analysis
with sub-basin landowners. Task 2 — Monitoring Well Data Collection was not able to be
completed due to technical issues with acquisition of video recording of the wells. Staff
coordinated with other GSAs in the subbasin to derive at a list of projects that contributes
to the subbasin’s monitoring network which will reduce data gaps and contribute to the
ability to monitor the Sustainable Indicators within the subbasin's GSPs. Staff compiled
the projects and sent a Grant Modification Request to DWR to re-align grants funds and
tasks to complete the following recommended projects.

New Project Funding 229,500.00
Category (b) Task2.1 Budget
MK - Water Quality Samplers (20 Samplers) 61,400.00
MK - Pressure Transducers - Monitoring Wells 22,400.00
GK -2 GNSS CORS 45,000.00
EK - CTL Monitoring Wells (4 - 200" East Wells) 100,700.00
Total New Projects Budget 229,500.00

County of Tulare — City of Lindsay — Exeter ID — Ivanhoe ID — Lindsay Strathmore ID — Lindmore ID — Stone Corral ID
Mailing address: P.O. Box 908 Lindsay, CA 93247
Physical Address: 315 E. Lindmore Street Lindsay, CA 93247
Phone 559-562-2534

15



\lr

ST KAWEAH

7. GROUNDWATER SUSTAINABILITY PLAN IMPLMENTATION:

c. Ad Hoc: During the January 24, 2022, EKGSA regular board meeting the Board
recommended the creation of an AdHoc committee to assist staff with the review the
evapotranspiration data acquired from LandlQ. The AdHoc Committee consists of
Director Hornung, Technical Advisory Committee member Craig Wallace, Nick Keller of
Keller and Wegley, Matt Klinchuch of Provost and Pritchard, and EKGSA staff Chris
Hunter and Cruz Romero.

The AdHoc committee has held two meetings. The first meeting discussed the outcomes
that would be required to achieve landowner “confidence” in the utilization of ET as the
parameter to measure groundwater usage. The committee had robust conversations,
reviewed landowner provided irrigation data, received an analysis from LandIQ, and
discussed potential modifications and recommendations to the Board. A report of
findings will be prepared and presented to the Board for consideration.

c. Stakeholder Input: Staff has had the opportunity to engage with twenty to thirty
landowners and/or ranch managers from the EKGSA, representatives of founding
districts, water agencies, and fellow subbasin GSAs. For the most part, stakeholders’
tone is positive, some supportive, and all seeking information and clarity on information
they have acquired second hand. The most important consistent threads that | have
acquired from engagement is the desire to be heard and involved in the process, the
need of regulatory clarity for business decisions, and a request for a revamp of EKGSA
website.

Staff is already working on a EKGSA website revamp, and staff has already solidified a
plan for a multi-lateral public outreach plan across the subbasin to improve landowner
awareness. |n addition to these efforts, EKGSA Rules and Regulations public outreach
strategy is being developed as the document is in the final review and approval process.
Staff is also developing of a multi-tiered public outreach strategy that will have
measurable metrics of success to determine the effectiveness of outreach activities.



EKGSA RULES AND REGULATIONS TERM SHEET

1. Purpose

These Rules and Regulations are established by the Board of Directors of the East Kaweah
Groundwater Sustainability Agency (EKGSA) to provide for the sustainable management of
groundwater within the EKGSA.

2. Authority

A groundwater sustainability agency may adopt rules, regulations, ordinances, and
resolutions for the purpose of this part, in compliance with any procedural requirements
applicable to the adoption of a rule, regulation, ordinance, or resolution by the groundwater
sustainability agency. (Division 6 Conservation, Development and Utilization of State Water
Resources Part 2.74, Chapter 5, Section 10725.2.)

3. Groundwater Sustainability Plan

These Rules and Regulations are designed to implement the provisions of the EKGSA
Groundwater Sustainability Plan and may be amended at any time if necessary to achieve
consistency with the groundwater sustainability plan and steps needed to achieve sustainability.

4. Key Definitions

Acre-Foot (AF) An Acre-Foot of water is equivalent to one acre of ground
covered one foot deep in water or 325,851 gallons.

Consumptive Use Water that leaves the land due to evaporation or transpiration.

Evapotranspiration The process by which water is transferred from the land to the
atmosphere by evaporation from the soil and other surfaces and
by transpiration of plants. Evapotranspiration will be measured
by utilizing satellite imagery and ground based truthing
stations.

Water Year “Water Year” means the 12-month period October 1, for any
given year through September 30, of the following year. The
water year is designated by the calendar year in which it ends.
Thus, the year ending September 30, 2022, is the "2022" water
year.

5. Rights of Access

EKGSA staff and/or others authorized by the General Manager shall notify the
owner of any land prior to entry thereon. Any such entry must be for the sole and



EKGSA RULES AND REGULATIONS TERM SHEET

1. Purpose

These Rules and Regulations are established by the Board of Directors of the East Kaweah
Groundwater Sustainability Agency (EKGSA) to provide for the sustainable management of
groundwater within the EKGSA.

2. Authority

A groundwater sustainability agency may adopt rules, regulations, ordinances, and
resolutions for the purpose of this part, in compliance with any procedural requirements
applicable to the adoption of a rule, regulation, ordinance, or resolution by the groundwater
sustainability agency. (Division 6 Conservation, Development and Utilization of State Water
Resources Part 2.74, Chapter 5, Section 10725.2.)

3. Groundwater Sustainability Plan

These Rules and Regulations are designed to implement the provisions of the EKGSA
Groundwater Sustainability Plan and may be amended at any time if necessary to achieve
consistency with the groundwater sustainability plan and steps needed to achieve sustainability.

4., Key Definitions

Acre-Foot (AF) An Acre-Foot of water is equivalent to one acre of ground
covered one foot deep in water or 325,851 gallons.

Consumptive Use Water that leaves the land due to evaporation or transpiration.

Evapotranspiration The process by which water is transferred from the land to the
atmosphere by evaporation from the soil and other surfaces and
by transpiration of plants. Evapotranspiration will be measured
by utilizing satellite imagery and ground based truthing
stations.

Water Year “Water Year” means the 12-month period October 1, for any
given year through September 30, of the following year. The
water year is designated by the calendar year in which it ends.
Thus, the year ending September 30, 2022, is the "2022" water
year.

5. Rights of Access

EKGSA staff and/or others authorized by the Executive Director shall notify the
owner of any land prior to entry thereon. Any such entry must be for the sole and



exclusive purpose of conducting GKGSA business.

6. Well Registration

a. All wells within the EKGSA must be registered with EKGSA no later than October 1,
2022. The owner or operator of a well shall register the well and provide, in full, the
information required to complete a form to be provided by the Agency that will
include the following:

1. Name and contact information of the entity that installed the well.

2. Date well was drilled.

Documentation establishing that the well was permitted and installed

correctly and according to permit.

Manufacturer and model of flow meter.

Installer and date of installation of flow meter.

Diameter of pipe and size of flow meter

Documentation establishing that flow meter was calibrated to

manufacture specification

8.  Inspection records establishing compliance with manufacturer standards
and requirements.

9.  Picture of the flowmeter that show it is installed correctly.

(98]

Nownk

b. The name of the owner of each well, the parcel number on which the facility is
located, along with the names of all operators for each extraction facility shall be
reported to EKGSA Agency within 30 days upon any change of ownership.

7. Groundwater Allocation

a. All assessed lands are allocated 0.85 AF per year of measured Consumptive Use.

b. Allirrigated lands receive Penalty Tier 1 of .3 AF per acre of measured
Consumptive Use.

c. All irrigated lands receive Penalty Tier 2 of .5 AF pe acre of measured
Consumptive Use.

8. Groundwater Use Penalty

a. Forirrigated lands, every AF or portion thereof used beyond 1.65 will be assessed
a $500 groundwater replacement fee.

b. Penalties must be paid within 30 days of the invoice for such penalties is issued
by EKGSA

9. Groundwater Transfer

a. There are no restrictions on groundwater transfers unless, in the determination of
the Executive Director, the transfer produces an undesirable result.



b. All transfers must be approved by EKGSA prior to the transfer becoming
effective.

c. All transferred water must be used within current Water Year and within EKGSA
boundaries.

10. Groundwater Credits

a. Groundwater credits can be accumulated from in lieu recharge by utilizing surface
storage or foreign supplies or by moving surface storage to groundwater recharge.

b. Groundwater recharge credits are provided at a 1:1 ratio (1 credit per AF
recharged).

c. Groundwater credits stay on the book for a rotation of 5 years. Any credits
unused after 5 years are removed from a landowner’s ledger as of the first day of
the sixth year after the credit is made.

d. Non-utilized groundwater allocations will be rolled over/credited to the following
Water Year.

e. To obtain groundwater credit, the receiver of the supply eligible for credit must
supply sufficient documentation to EKGSA no later than 30 days from the receipt
of such supply. EKGSA shall determine what constitutes sufficient
documentation.

11. Protest of Usage Measurement and Penalty Assessment

a. All protests must be submitted in writing to the EKGSA Executive Director no
later than 30 days of receipt of billing

b. If the protest cannot be resolved within 60 days of receipt by the Executive
Director, the Executive Director shall submit the protest to the Board of Directors,
which shall issue a ruling on the protest.

c. Landowners/Managing party of assessed acres can contest the Consumptive Use
as defined by Evapotranspiration.

d. Any protest must include data of applied usage from instrumentation registered
with EKGSA. Otherwise, the protest will be disallowed.

e. Any protest must include the maintenance records of equipment upon which the
protest is based. Otherwise, the protest will be disallowed.

Other Areas of Concern

o We also talked about surface water credits, but it didn’t seem to be a definitive of
how, so I will leave that up to you.



3.1 DEFICIENCY 1. THE PLAN DOES NOT SET SUSTAINABLE MANAGEMENT CRITERIA FOR CHRONIC
LOWERING OF GROUNDWATER LEVELS IN THE MANNER REQUIRED BY SGMA AND THE GSP
REGULATIONS

ED Summary: We need more work on the GW MTs of identifying impacts with allowing the continued
groundwater level decline and how they are not impactful to domestic and agrarian demands.

3.1.2 The GSAs, collectively, have not defined undesirable results and minimum thresholds for chronic
lowering of groundwater levels in the manner required by SGMA and the GSP.

States EKGSA does a good job (use of TAC to determine): “However, the East Kaweah GSP does not
explain what factors were ultimately determined to be significant, how the GSA considered them when
defining undesirable results and minimum thresholds, or how the undesirable results and minimum
threshold established in the GSP would prevent them from occurring.”

“All three GSPs base their groundwater level management regime on preventing the rate of decline
from becoming worse than the rate that existed in the 11 years immediately preceding SGMA, but none
document that the approach to setting undesirable results and minimum thresholds for groundwater
levels was related to, or based on, avoidance of significant and unreasonable depletion of supply”

Well Observation Program/ Drinking Water Wells Protection Program — if intended to mitigate, define
the project more

Department staff do not find evidence in the GSP that indicates the GSAs considered the effects of the
groundwater level sustainable management criteria, which allow for continued lowering of levels, on the
other sustainable management criteria. In particular, Department staff did not find evidence that the
GSAs have considered the effect that continued groundwater level decline, and, by extension, reduction
of groundwater storage could have on the degradation of groundwater quality

Corrective Actions:
3.1.3 Corrective Action 1

a) The GSAs must revise the Plan to define sustainable management criteria for the chronic lowering of
groundwater levels by utilizing information specific to the Subbasin.

Next, the GSAs should revise minimum thresholds to quantify groundwater conditions which represent a
point in the Subbasin that, if exceeded, may cause undesirable results. The Plan’s description of
minimum thresholds should include (1) information and criteria relied upon to establish and justify the
minimum thresholds supported by the basin setting and qualified by uncertainty in the understanding of
the basin setting; (2) the relationship between these minimum thresholds and each sustainability
indicator to show how these basin conditions would avoid undesirable results for each sustainability
indicator; (3) a technical description explaining how operating the Subbasin to the proposed minimum
thresholds would not be expected to cause undesirable results in adjacent basins or affect the ability of
adjacent basins to achieve their sustainability goals; and (4) how the minimum thresholds may affect the
interests of beneficial uses and users of groundwater or land uses and property interests

b) If the GSAs intend to rely on mitigation actions to address impacts that would occur as a result of the
continued lowering of groundwater levels as a means to support the reasonableness of their sustainable



management criteria, then the GSPs should be revised to include specific details of the mitigation
measures that will be enacted, including the schedule for implementation and other details that will
allow the Department to assess their feasibility and likely effectiveness.

3.2 DEFICIENCY 2. THE PLAN DOES DO NOT SET SUSTAINABLE MANAGEMENT CRITERIA FOR SUBSIDENCE
IN THE MANNER REQUIRED BY SGMA AND THE GSP REGULATIONS

ED Summary: EKGSA is good here. However, we need to coordinate with GKGSA and not allow 24” of
subsidence on each side of the FKC

The East Kaweah GSP better comports with expectations based on the GSP Regulations to develop
sustainable management criteria for subsidence.

Issue is the coordination between EKGSA’s subsidence SMC and that of GKGSAs (and then MK/GK need
some other work)

3.3 DEFICIENCY 3. THE PLAN DOES NOT CONSISTENTLY IDENTIFY INTERCONNECTED SURFACE WATER
SYSTEMS, OR THE QUANTITY AND TIMING OF DEPLETION OF THOSE SYSTEMS DUE TO GROUNDWATER
USE. THE PLAN DOES NOT CONSISTENTLY DEFINE SUSTAINABLE MANAGEMENT CRITERIA FOR
DEPLETION OF INTERCONNECTED SURFACE WATER IN THE MANNER REQUIRED BY THE GSP
REGULATIONS.

ED Summary: EKGSA gets a kudo for saying “There are interconnected surface water systems” but we
didn’t go far enough and the use of GW levels was not sufficient. Additionally, there was a problem
with the coordination of this condition between the GK/EK.

3.3.2 Deficiency Details The Plan for the Subbasin contains conflicting statements about the presence
and location of interconnected surface waters. The Plan identifies the presence of interconnected
surface water, but has not demonstrated the relationship between groundwater use and stream
depletion or developed sustainable management criteria for that depletion, as required by SGMA and
the GSP Regulations. The GSAs rely on the Coordination Agreement and its appendices.

KSB Issues
ED Summary: We need coordination on the MTs (slope of overdraft, subsidence, interconnected).

Overall, my view is EKGSA’s MTs are good and we need to clarify the impacts on domestic/agrarian
demands.



Deficiency and DWR Recommended Corrective Action

‘ Initial Response/Action

GSP Location

hia A

Deficiency 1 - The Plan does not set S

Criteria (SMC) for lowering groundwater levels in the manner required by SGMA and the GSP

Regulati

| Revise the Plan to define SMC for the chronic lowering of groundwater levels
by utilizing information specific to the Subbasin.

First characterize undesirable results by describing the significant and
unreasonable effects that could be, or are being caused by, lowering
groundwater levels that the GSAs are seeking to avoid.

Need to define the criteria used to determine when and where the
effects of the groundwater conditions will cause undesirable results
and describe the potential effects on the beneficial uses and users of
groundwater that may occur or are occurring from undesirable results,
which analysis could include both physical and economic impacts.

| This must be coordinated across the GSAs.

| How do we want to define Undesirable Results? Answering
| this question will spur how we approach the technical
| support.

| Potential UR linkages:

Hydrological cycles and recovery?
Number of Dry Wells

Estimated % of groundwater storage

Coord. Agmnt.
App. 6

3.4.1 (EKGSA)
3.4 {GKGSA)

3.2 {MKGSA)

f—-

Revise Minimum Thresholds (MTs) to quantify groundwater conditions which
represent a point in the Subbasin that, if exceeded, may cause undesirable
results. GSP’s description of MTs should include:

Information and criteria relied upon to establish and justify the
minimum thresholds supported by the basin setting and qualified by
uncertainty in the understanding of the basin setting

Relationship between these minimum thresholds and each
sustainability indicator to show how these basin conditions would
avoid undesirable results for each sustainability indicator

A technical description explaining how operating the Subbasin to the
proposed minimum thresholds would not be expected to cause
undesirable results in adjacent basins or affect the ability of adjacent
basins to achieve their sustainability goals

How the minimum thresholds may affect the interests of beneficial
uses and users of groundwater or land uses and property interests.

Hitting the points in the corrective action will largely stem
| from how we answer the question above.

| DWR recommended we include the following effects within
our technical justification and linkage to all SMC and
indicators:

“reduced irrigation water supplies for agriculture

and for municipal systems through loss of well

capacity,

loss or degradations of water supplies for smaller

community water systems and domestic wells due

to well failures,

increased energy consumption due to lowered

water levels, and the adverse economic

| consequences of the aforementioned effects such as

increased energy usage to extract groundwater from

deeper levels.”

Coord. Agmnt.
App. 6.4

3.4.1 (EKGSA)
5.3.1 (GKGSA}

5.3.1 (MKGSA)

i intending to rely on mitigation actions to address impacts that would occur
because of the continued lowering of groundwater levels as a means to support
the reasonableness of their SMC, then the GSPs should be revised to include
specific details of the mitigation measures that will be enacted, including the
schedule for implementation and other details that will allow DWR to assess

| their feasibility and likely effectiveness.

Management Actions were envisioned by all GSPs for
impacted wells. Do the GSAs want to make this more of a
pronounced Subbasin-wide effort?

5.3.2 (EKGSA)
7.3.6 (GKGSA)

7.4.8 (MKGSA)

heidd

!"Deficiency 2 - The Plan does not set SMC for e in the

requiréd by SGMA and the GSP Regulations

| MKGSA and GKGSA must define SMC for land subsidence in the manner |
required by SGMA and the GSP Regulations. The GSAs should develop SMC and |

Undesirable Results based on the amount of subsidence that would
substantially interfere with land surface uses.

Can we lean on any insights from the modeling effort with
| Stanford? Seems like we need to better define what is
Undesirable, but there may be ability to point to this as a gap
area with a concrete work plan and schedule.

Are there critical infrastructure on the west side? Hwy 99 or
| other main canals?

Coord. Agmnt.
App. 6.6

5.5 (GKGSA)

5.3.4 (MKGSA)

GKGSA also must explain how their minimum thresholds in the vicinity of |

identified critical infrastructure {i.e., the Friant-Kern Canal) will not
substantially interfere with the Canal's use (identified by EKGSA as an
undesirable result).

Maybe Greater identifies the FKC as critical infrastructure
and differentiates a portion of its eastern area to have

| similar SMC as east?
4

3.4.3 (EKGSA)

5.5.1 (GKGSA)

[ use. The Plan does not consistently define SMC for depl

required by the

Deficiency 3 - The Plan does not consistently identify interconnected surface water systems, or the quantity and timing of depletion of those systems due to
of interconnected surface water in the

GSP Repul

GKGSA and EKGSA must define SMC for interconnected surface water in the
manner required by SGMA and the GSP Regulations.

If there is not sufficient information to develop specific SMC at this
time, then they should properly identify depletion of interconnected
surface water as a data gap and should provide a plan to close the data
gap as soon as practical, with significant progress by the first required
periodic evaluation.

Acquire or develop data and tools to identify interconnected surface
water reaches, and the quantity and timing of the depletion of
interconnected surface water due to groundwater use for
interconnected surface water systems identified

Develop SMC based on the rate or volume of surface water depletions
caused by groundwater use that has adverse impacts on beneficial uses
and users of surface water.

Need to coordinate approach between EK and GK.
| What/why are the definitions views for this indicator similar
or different?
|
| don’t think there is enough data on the smaller water
bodies in terms of flow data and groundwater level
monitoring. Setting a work plan for better defining the
connection and relationship to groundwater pumping is the
through this one.

MFR study aiming to be funded in latest grant can potentially
help with this item.

3.4.1 (EKGSA)

5.3.1 (GKGSA)

EK should provide information to demonstrate that their selected groundwater
level thresholds are a reasonable proxy for the depletion of interconnected
surface water. if this information is a data gap then it should be properly
identified as such, and a plan and schedule to address this data gap should be
identified to acquire this information.

There is not much data for definitively determining
connection and rate of depletions, if any. This was a listed
gap with the plan to add monitoring network wells and
stream gauges. Groundwater levels as a proxy was the filler
in the meantime. | think establishing a concrete work plan
{for above) is the first step.

3.4.1 (EKGSA)




DocuSign Envelope ID: 0FC6B8EEA-DCD0-4092-9ABE-DADS5746B349

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF WATER RESOURCES

SUSTAINABLE GROUNDWATER
MANAGEMENT OFFICE

715 P Street | Sacramento, CA 95814 | P.O. Box 942836 | Sacramento, CA 94236-0001

January 28, 2022

Eric Osterling

Kaweah Subbasin Point of Contact
2975 N. Farmersville Rd
Farmersville, CA 93223
eosterling@greaterkaweahgsa.org

RE: Incomplete Determination of the 2020 Groundwater Sustainability Plans Submitted
for the San Joaquin Valley — Kaweah Subbasin

Dear Eric Osterling,

The Department of Water Resources (Department) has evaluated the three groundwater
sustainability plans (GSPs) submitted for the San Joaquin Valley — Kaweah Subbasin
(Subbasin), as well as the materials considered to be part of the required coordination
agreement. Collectively, the three GSPs and the coordination agreement are referred
to as the Plan for the Subbasin. The Department has determined that the Plan is
incomplete pursuant to Section 355.2(e)(2) of the GSP Regulations.

The Department based its incomplete determination on recommendations from the Staff
Report, included as an enclosure to the attached Statement of Findings, which describes
that the Subbasin’s Plan does not satisfy the objectives of the Sustainable Groundwater
Management Act (SGMA) nor substantially comply with the GSP Regulations. The Staff
Report also provides corrective actions which the Department recommends the
Subbasin’s three groundwater sustainability agencies (GSAs) review while determining
how and whether to address the deficiencies in a coordinated manner.

The Subbasin's GSAs have 180 days, the maximum allowed by the GSP Regulations,
to address the identified deficiencies. Where addressing the deficiencies requires
modification of the Plan, the GSAs must adopt those modifications into their respective
GSPs and all applicable coordination agreement materials, or otherwise demonstrate
that those modifications are part of the Plan before resubmitting it to the Department for
evaluation no later than July 27, 2022. The Department understands that much work
has occurred to advance sustainable groundwater management since the GSAs
submitted their GSPs in January 2020. To the extent to which those efforts are related
or responsive to the Department's identified deficiencies, we encourage you to
document that as part of your Plan resubmittal. The Department prepared a Frequently
Asked Questions document to provide general information and guidance on the process
of addressing deficiencies in an incomplete determination.

Department staff will work expeditiously to review the revised components of your Plan
resubmittal. If the revisions sufficiently address the identified deficiencies, the
Department will determine that the Plan is approved. In that scenario, Department staff

STATE OF CALIFORNIA | GAVIN NEWSOM, GOVERNOR | CALIFORNIA NATURAL RESOURCES AGENCY
24



DocuSign Envelope ID: OFC68EEA-DCD0-4092-9ABE-D9ADS5746B349

Page 2 of 2

will identify additional recommended corrective actions that the GSAs should address
early in implementing their GSPs (i.e., no later than the first required periodic
evaluation). Among other items, those corrective actions will recommend the GSAs
provide more detail on their plans and schedules to address data gaps. Those
recommendations will call for significantly expanded documentation of the plans and
schedules to implement specific projects and management actions. Regardless of those
recommended corrective actions, the Department expects the first periodic evaluations,
required no later than January 2025 — one-quarter of the way through the 20-year
implementation period — to document significant progress toward achieving sustainable
groundwater management.

If the Subbasin’s GSAs cannot address the deficiencies identified in this letter by
July 27, 2022, then the Department, after consultation with the State Water Resources
Control Board, will determine the GSP to be inadequate. In that scenario, the State
Water Resources Control Board may identify additional deficiencies that the GSAs
would need to address in the state intervention processes outlined in SGMA.

Please contact Sustainable Groundwater Management Office staff by emailing
sgmps@water.ca.gov if you have any questions about the Department’s assessment,
implementation of your Plan, or to arrange a meeting with the Department.

Thank you,

Pad, Cosselin

Paul Gosselin
Deputy Director of Sustainable Groundwater Management

Attachment: Statement of Findings Regarding the Determination of Incomplete Status
of the San Joaquin Valley — Kaweah Subbasin Groundwater Sustainability Plans

STATE OF CALIFORNIA | GAVIN NEWSOM, GOVERNOR | CALIFORNIA NATURAL RESOURCES AGENCY
25



DocusSign Envelope ID: 9A8D7BB0-2175-4776-ABE6-2784AFE31650

STATE OF CALIFORNIA
DEPARTMENT OF WATER RESOURCES

STATEMENT OF FINDINGS REGARDING THE
DETERMINATION OF INCOMPLETE STATUS OF THE
SAN JOAQUIN VALLEY - KAWEAH SUBBASIN
GROUNDWATER SUSTAINABILITY PLANS

The Department of Water Resources (Department) is required to evaluate whether a
submitted groundwater sustainability plan (GSP) conforms to specific requirements of the
Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA), is likely to achieve the sustainability
goal for the basin covered by the GSP, and whether the GSP adversely affects the ability
of an adjacent basin to implement its GSP or impedes achievement of sustainability goals
in an adjacent basin. (Water Code § 10733.) The Department is directed to issue an
assessment of the GSP within two years of its submission. (Water Code § 10733.4.)

SGMA allows for multiple GSPs implemented by multiple groundwater sustainability
agencies (GSAs) and coordinated pursuant to a single coordination agreement that
covers the entire basin to be an acceptable planning scenario. (Water Code § 10727.) In
the San Joaquin Valley — Kaweah Subbasin (Subbasin), three separate GSPs were
prepared by three GSAs pursuant to the required coordination agreement. This Statement
of Findings explains the Department’s decision regarding the multiple GSPs covering the
Subbasin submitted jointly by the multiple GSAs. Collectively, the three GSPs and the
coordination agreement are referred to as the Plan for the Subbasin. Individually, the
GSPs include the following:

o East Kaweah GSA Groundwater Sustainability Plan (East Kaweah GSP) — the
East Kaweah GSP is implemented by a single GSA, the East Kaweah GSA.

e Greater Kaweah Groundwater Sustainability Agency Groundwater Sustainability
Plan (Greater Kaweah GSP) — the Greater Kaweah GSP is implemented by a
single GSA, the Greater Kaweah GSA.

o Mid-Kaweah GSA Groundwater Sustainability Plan (Mid-Kaweah GSP) -
prepared by the Mid-Kaweah GSA.

Department management has reviewed the enclosed Staff Report, which recommends
that the deficiencies identified should preclude approval of the Plan. Based on its review
of the Staff Report, Department management is satisfied that staff have conducted a
thorough evaluation and assessment of the Plan and concurs with, and hereby adopts,
staffs recommendation and all the corrective actions provided. The Department thus
deems the Plan incomplete based on the Staff Report and the findings contained herein.

Page 10f 3



DocuSign Envelope ID: 9A8D7BB0-2175-4776-ABE6-2784AFE31650

Statement of Findings
San Joaquin Valley — Kaweah Subbasin (Basin No. 5-022.11)

A. The Plan does not define sustainable management criteria for chronic lowering
of groundwater levels in the manner required by SGMA and the GSP
Regulations.

1.

The GSPs do not define metrics for undesirable results and minimum
thresholds based on avoiding a significant and unreasonable depletion of
groundwater supply, informed by, and considering, the relevant and
applicable beneficial uses and users in their Subbasin.

The GSPs do not describe specific potential effects from the chronic
lowering of groundwater levels and depletion of supply that would be
significant and unreasonable to beneficial uses and users of groundwater,
on land uses and property interests, and other potential effects and,
therefore, constitute an undesirable result.

The GSPs do not consider how minimum thresholds developed for one
sustainability indicator will affect other related sustainability indicators.

B. The Plan does not define sustainable management criteria, including undesirable
results, minimum thresholds, and measurable objectives, for land subsidence in
the manner required by SGMA and the GSP Regulations.

1.

The Greater Kaweah GSP and Mid-Kaweah GSP do not define metrics for
undesirable results and minimum thresholds based on the amount of
subsidence that would substantially interfere with land surface uses and
users in their Subbasin, as required by SGMA and the GSP Regulations.
The Greater Kaweah and Mid-Kaweah GSPs set minimum thresholds that
would allow for up to 0.75 feet per year of continued subsidence (up to 15
feet over the next 20 years), but these thresholds are not designed to avoid
undesirable results as required by the GSP Regulations.

Discordant sustainable management criteria for land subsidence in the
vicinity of the Friant Kern Canal established by the Greater Kaweah and
East Kaweah GSPs are not supported by convincing technical information
demonstrating that the Greater Kaweah thresholds will not adversely
affect conditions in East Kaweah and prevent that part of the Subbasin
from achieving its sustainability goal.

C. The Plan does not sufficiently and consistently characterize interconnected
surface water nor define sustainable management criteria for the depletion of
those interconnected surface waters in the manner required by SGMA and the
GSP Regulations.

California Department of Water Resources Page 2 of 3



DocuSign Envelope ID: 9A8D78B0-2175-4776-ABE6-2784AFE31650

Statement of Findings
San Joaquin Valley — Kaweah Subbasin (Basin No. 5-022.11)

1. While the Plan identifies locations where interconnected surface water is
likely present in the Subbasin, it is not coordinated in its management
efforts for the depletion of interconnected surface water.

2. The Greater Kaweah GSP documents areas with likely interconnected
surface water, as does the Coordination Agreement, but the Greater
Kaweah GSA has not developed sustainable management criteria for
interconnected surface water.

3. The East Kaweah GSP elected to use groundwater level thresholds as a
proxy for the depletion of interconnected surface water, but do not
demonstrate adequate evidence showing those levels are an appropriate
proxy.

Based on the above, the Plan submitted by the GSAs in the San Joaquin Valley — Kaweah
Subbasin is determined to be incomplete because the Plan does not satisfy the
requirements of SGMA, nor does it substantially comply with the GSP Regulations. The
corrective actions provided in the enclosed Staff Report are intended to address the
deficiencies that, at this time, preclude the Plan’s approval. The GSAs have up to 180
days to address the deficiencies outlined above and detailed in the Staff Report. Once
the GSAs resubmit their respective GSPs and the required coordination agreement, the
Department will review the revised Plan to evaluate whether the deficiencies were
sufficiently addressed. Should the GSAs fail to take sufficient actions to correct the
deficiencies identified by the Department, the Department shall disapprove the Plan if,
after consultation with the State Water Resources Control Board, the Department
determines the Plan to be inadequate pursuant to 23 CCR § 355.2(e)(3)(C).

Signed:

Kb

Karla Nemeth, Director
Date: January 28, 2022

Enclosure: Groundwater Sustainability Plan Assessment Staff Report — San Joaquin
Valley — Kaweah Subbasin

California Department of Water Resources Page 3 of 3



State of California
Department of Water Resources
Sustainable Groundwater Management Program
Groundwater Sustainability Plan Assessment Staff Report

Groundwater Basin Name: San Joaquin Valley — Kaweah Subbasin (No. 5-022.11)

Number of GSPs: 3 (see list below)
Number of GSAs: 3 (see list below)
Point of Contact: Eric Osterling
Recommendation: Incomplete

Date: January 28, 2022

The Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA)' allows for any of the three
following planning scenarios: a single groundwater sustainability plan (GSP) developed
and implemented by a single groundwater sustainability agency (GSA); a single GSP
developed and implemented by multiple GSAs; and multiple GSPs implemented by
multiple GSAs and coordinated pursuant to a single coordination agreement.2 GSAs
developing GSPs are expected to comply with SGMA and substantially comply with the
Department of Water Resources’ (Department) GSP Regulations.® The Department is
required to evaluate an adopted GSP within two years of its submittal date and issue a
written assessment.*

In the Kaweah Subbasin (Subbasin), three separate GSPs were prepared by three GSAs
pursuant to a single coordination agreement.® The Kaweah Subbasin Coordination
Agreement (Coordination Agreement) includes a legal agreement signed by the three
GSAs, as well as seven technical documents incorporated as appendices to the legal
agreement that support applicable sections to each of the GSPs — Basin Setting,
Monitoring Networks, Water Accounting Framework, Data Management System, Data
Gaps, Sustainability Goal and Undesirable Results, and Model Simulation Results.
Collectively, the three GSPs and the coordination agreement will, for evaluation and
assessment purposes, be treated and referred to as the Plan for the Subbasin.
Individually, the GSPs include the following:

e FEast Kaweah GSA Groundwater Sustainability Plan (East Kaweah GSP) —
prepared by the East Kaweah GSA (East Kaweah).

1 Water Code § 10720 et seq.

2 Water Code § 10727.

323 CCR § 350 et seq.

4 Water Code § 10733.4(d); 23 CCR § 355.2(e).
5 Water Code § 10733.4(b)

California Department of Water Resources
Sustainable Groundwater Management Program Page 1 of 23

29



Plan Assessment Staff Report
San Joaquin Valley — Kaweah Subbasin (No. 5-022.11) January 28, 2022

o Greater Kaweah Groundwater Sustainability Agency Groundwater Sustainability
Plan (Greater Kaweah GSP) — prepared by the Greater Kaweah GSA (Greater
Kaweabh).

e Mid-Kaweah GSA Groundwater Sustainability Plan, Mid-Kaweah Groundwater
Sustainability Agency (Mid-Kaweah GSP) — prepared by the Mid-Kaweah GSA
(Mid-Kaweah).

Department staff have thoroughly evaluated the Plan, the Subbasin’s coordination
agreement, and other information provided or available and known to staff and have
identified deficiencies in the Plan that staff recommend should preclude its approval.® In
addition, consistent with the GSP Regulations, Department staff have provided corrective
actions that the GSAs should review while determining how and whether to address the
deficiencies in a coordinated manner.” The deficiencies and corrective actions are
explained in greater detail in Section 3 of this staff report and are generally related to the
need to define sustainable management criteria in the manner required by SGMA and the
GSP Regulations.

This assessment includes four sections:

e Section 1 — Evaluation Criteria: Describes the legislative requirements and the
Department’s evaluation criteria.

e Section 2 - Required Conditions: Describes the submission requirements, Plan
completeness, and basin coverage required for a Plan to be evaluated by the
Department.

e Section 3 - Plan Evaluation: Provides a detailed assessment of identified
deficiencies in the Plan. Consistent with the GSP Regulations, Department staff
have provided corrective actions for the GSAs to address the deficiencies.

e Section 4 - Staff Recommendation: Provides staff's recommendation regarding
the Department’s determination.

623 CCR §355.2(€)(2).
723 CCR §355.2(e)(2)(B).

California Department of Water Resources
Sustainable Groundwater Management Program Page 2 of 23



Plan Assessment Staff Report
San Joaquin Valley — Kaweah Subbasin (No. 5-022.11) January 28, 2022

1 EVALUATION CRITERIA

The Department evaluates whether a Plan conforms to the statutory requirements of
SGMA & and is likely to achieve the basin’'s sustainability goal.® To achieve the
sustainability goal, the Plan must demonstrate that implementation will lead to sustainable
groundwater management, which means the management and use of groundwater in a
manner that can be maintained during the planning and implementation horizon without
causing undesirable results. '° Undesirable results are required to be defined
quantitatively by the GSAs overlying a basin and occur when significant and
unreasonable effects for any of the applicable sustainability indicators are caused by
groundwater conditions occurring throughout the basin. "' The Department is also
required to evaluate whether the Plan will adversely affect the ability of an adjacent basin
to implement its groundwater sustainability program or achieve its sustainability goal.'?

For a Plan to be evaluated by the Department, it must first be determined that it was
submitted by the statutory deadline3 and that it is complete and covers the entire basin.
Additionally, for those GSAs choosing to develop multiple GSPs, the Plan submission
must include a coordination agreement.'S The coordination agreement must explain how
the multiple GSPs in the basin have been developed and implemented utilizing the same
data and methodologies and that the elements of the multiple GSPs are based upon
consistent interpretations of the basin’s setting. If these required conditions are satisfied,
the Department evaluates the Plan to determine whether it complies with SGMA and
substantially complies with the GSP Regulations.'® As stated in the GSP Regulations,
“[s]ubstantial compliance means that the supporting information is sufficiently detailed
and the analyses sufficiently thorough and reasonable, in the judgment of the
Department, to evaluate the Plan, and the Department determines that any discrepancy
would not materially affect the ability of the Agency to achieve the sustainability goal for
the basin, or the ability of the Department to evaluate the likelihood of the Plan to attain
that goal.”"”

When evaluating whether the Plan is likely to achieve the sustainability goal for the basin,
Department staff review the information provided for sufficiency, credibility, and
consistency with scientific and engineering professional standards of practice.'® The
Department's review considers whether there is a reasonable relationship between the

8 Water Code §§ 10727.2, 10727.4, 10727.6.
9 Water Code § 10733(a).

0 Water Code § 10721(v).

1123 CCR § 354.26.

12 Water Code § 10733(c).

1323 CCR § 355.4(a)(1).

1423 CCR §§ 355.4(a)(2), 355.4(a)(3).
1523 CCR § 357 4.

1623 CCR § 350 et seq.

1723 CCR § 355.4(b).

1823 CCR § 351(h).

California Department of Water Resources
Sustainable Groundwater Management Program Page 3 of 23



Plan Assessment Staff Report
San Joaquin Valley — Kaweah Subbasin (No. 5-022.11) January 28, 2022

information provided by the GSAs and the assumptions and conclusions presented in the
Plan, including whether the interests of the beneficial uses and users of groundwater in
the basin have been considered; whether sustainable management criteria and projects
and management actions described in the Plan are commensurate with the level of
understanding of the basin setting; and whether those projects and management actions
are feasible and likely to prevent undesirable results.'® The Department also considers
whether the GSAs have the legal authority and financial resources necessary to
implement the Plan.?0

To the extent overdraft is present in a basin, the Department evaluates whether the Plan
provides a reasonable assessment of the overdraft and includes reasonable means to
mitigate it. 2! When applicable, the Department will assess whether coordination
agreements have been adopted by all relevant parties and satisfy the requirements of
SGMA and the GSP Regulations.?? The Department also considers whether the Plan
provides reasonable measures and schedules to eliminate identified data gaps.2® Lastly,
the Department’s review considers the comments submitted on the Plan and evaluates
whether the GSAs have adequately responded to the comments that raise credible
technical or policy issues with the Plan.24

The Department is required to evaluate the Plan within two years of its submittal date and
issue a written assessment.25 The assessment is required to include a determination of
the Plan’s status.?® The GSP Regulations provide three options for determining the status
of a Plan: approved,?” incomplete,?® or inadequate.?®

After review of the Plan, Department staff may conclude that the information provided is
not sufficiently detailed, or the analyses not sufficiently thorough and reasonable, to
evaluate whether it is likely to achieve the sustainability goal for the basin. If the
Department determines the deficiencies precluding approval may be capable of being
corrected by the GSAs in a timely manner,3° the Department will determine the status of
the Plan to be incomplete. A formerly deemed incomplete Plan may be resubmitted to the
Department for reevaluation after all deficiencies have been addressed and incorporated
into the Plan within 180 days after the Department makes its incomplete determination.
The Department will review the revised Plan to evaluate whether the identified
deficiencies were sufficiently addressed. Depending on the outcome of that evaluation,

1923 CCR §§ 355.4(b)(1), (3), (4) and (5).

2023 CCR § 355.4(b)(9).

2123 CCR § 355.4(b)(6).

2223 CCR § 355.4(b)(8).

2323 CCR § 355.4(b)(2).

2423 CCR § 355.4(b)(10).

25 \Water Code § 10733.4(d); 23 CCR § 355.2(e).
2 Water Code § 10733.4(d); 23 CCR § 355.2(e).
2723 CCR § 355.2(e)(1).

2823 CCR § 355.2(¢)(2).

2923 CCR § 355.2(e)(3).

23 CCR § 355.2(e)(2)(B)(i).

California Department of Water Resources
Sustainable Groundwater Management Program Page 4 of 23



Plan Assessment Staff Report
San Joaquin Valley — Kaweah Subbasin (No. 5-022.11) January 28, 2022

the Department may determine the resubmitted Plan is approved. Alternatively, the
Department may find a formerly deemed incomplete GSP is inadequate if, after
consultation with the State Water Resources Control Board, it determines that the GSAs
have not taken sufficient actions to correct any identified deficiencies.3

The staff assessment of the Plan involves the review of information presented by the
GSAs, including models and assumptions, and an evaluation of that information based
on scientific reasonableness. In conducting its assessment, the Department does not
recalculate or reevaluate technical information provided in the Plan or perform its own
geologic or engineering analysis of that information. The recommendation to approve a
Plan does not signify that Department staff, were they to exercise the professional
judgment required to develop a Plan for the basin, would make the same assumptions
and interpretations as those contained in the Plan, but simply that Department staff have
determined that the assumptions and interpretations relied upon by the submitting GSAs
are supported by adequate, credible evidence, and are scientifically reasonable.

Lastly, the Department’s review and assessment of an approved Plan is a continual
process. Both SGMA and the GSP Regulations provide the Department with the ongoing
authority and duty to review the implementation of the Plan.32 Also, GSAs have an
ongoing duty to reassess their GSPs, provide annual reports to the Department, and,
when necessary, update or amend their GSPs.32 The passage of time or new information
may make what is reasonable and feasible at the time of this review to not be so in the
future. The emphasis of the Department’s periodic reviews will be to assess the GSA's
progress toward achieving the basin’s sustainability goal and whether implementation of
the Plan adversely affects the ability of GSAs in adjacent basins to achieve their
sustainability goals.

3123 CCR § 355.2(e)(3)(C).
32 Water Code § 10733.8; 23 CCR § 355.6 et seq.
33 Water Code §§ 10728 et seq., 10728.2.

California Department of Water Resources
Sustainable Groundwater Management Program Page 5 of 23



Pian Assessment Staff Report
San Joaquin Valley — Kaweah Subbasin (No. 5-022.11) January 28, 2022

2 REQUIRED CONDITIONS

A GSP, to be evaluated by the Department, must be submitted within the applicable
statutory deadline.3* The GSP must also be complete and must, either on its own or in
coordination with other GSPs, cover the entire basin.3> Additionally, when multiple GSPs
are developed in a basin, the submission of all GSPs must include a coordination
agreement.3® The coordination agreement must explain how the multiple GSPs in the
basin have been developed and implemented utilizing the same data and methodologies
and that the elements of the multiple GSPs are based upon consistent interpretations of
the basin’s setting. If a Plan is determined to be incomplete, Department staff may require
corrective actions that address minor or potentially significant deficiencies identified in the
Plan. The GSAs in a basin, whether developing a single GSP covering the basin or
multiple GSPs, must sufficiently address those required corrective actions within the time
provided, not to exceed 180 days, for the Plan to be reevaluated by the Department and
potentially approved.

2.1 SuBMISSION DEADLINE

SGMA required basins categorized as high- or medium-priority as of January 1, 2017 and
that were subject to critical conditions of overdraft to submit a GSP no later than January
31, 2020.%

The GSAs submitted their individual GSPs to the Department in January 2020, and the
coordination agreement was submitted on January 31, 2020, in compliance with the
statutory deadline.

2.2 COMPLETENESS

GSP Regulations specify that the Department shall evaluate a Plan if that Plan is
complete and includes the information required by SGMA and the GSP Regulations. 38
For those basins choosing to submit multiple GSPs, a coordination agreement is required.

The Subbasin’s three GSAs submitted three separate adopted GSPs that together cover
the entire Subbasin, and all GSAs signed the coordination agreement. Department staff
found the GSPs and coordination agreement to be complete and include the required
information, sufficient to warrant an evaluation by the Department. The Department
posted the Subbasin’s three GSPs and coordination agreement to its website on February
19, 2020.

34 Water Code § 10720.7.

3523 CCR § 355.4(a)(3).

36 Water Code § 10733.4(b); 23 CCR § 357 4.
37 Water Code § 10720.7(a)(1).

38 23 CCR § 355.4(a)(2).

California Department of Water Resources
Sustainable Groundwater Management Program Page 6 of 23



Plan Assessment Staff Report
San Joaquin Valley — Kaweah Subbasin (No. 5-022.11) January 28, 2022

2.3 BAsSIN COVERAGE

A GSP, either on its own or in coordination with other GSPs, must cover the entire basin. 3
A Plan that intends to cover the entire basin may be presumed to do so if the basin is fully
contained within the jurisdictional boundaries of the submitting GSA(s).

The Plan intends to manage the entire Kaweah Subbasin, and collectively the
jurisdictional boundaries of the submitting GSAs appear to cover the entire Subbasin.*

39 Water Code § 10727(b); 23 CCR § 355.4(a)(3).
40 23 CCR § 355.4(a)(3).

California Department of Water Resources
Sustainable Groundwater Management Program Page 7 of 23

35



Plan Assessment Staff Report
San Joaquin Valley — Kaweah Subbasin (No. 5-022.11) January 28, 2022

3 PLAN EVALUATION

As stated in Section 355.4 of the GSP Regulations, a basin “shall be sustainably managed
within 20 years of the applicable statutory deadline consistent with the objectives of the
Act.” The Department’s assessment is based on a number of related factors*! including
whether the elements of a GSP were developed in the manner required by the GSP
Regulations, 42 whether the GSP was developed using appropriate data and
methodologies and whether its conclusions are scientifically reasonable,*® and whether
the GSP, through the implementation of clearly defined and technically feasible projects
and management actions, is likely to achieve a tenable sustainability goal for the basin.44

Department staff have identified deficiencies in the GSPs, the most serious of which
preclude staff from recommending approval of the Plan at this time. Department staff
believe the GSAs may be able to correct the identified deficiencies within 180 days.
Consistent with the GSP Regulations, Department staff are providing corrective actions
related to the deficiencies, detailed below, including the general regulatory background,
the specific deficiency identified in the Plan, and the specific actions to address the
deficiency.

GENERAL BACKGROUND

SGMA allows for multiple GSPs to be implemented by multiple GSAs and coordinated
pursuant to a single coordination agreement that covers an entire basin.** The GSP
Regulations and SGMA detail the requirements for a coordination agreement and the
elements of the GSPs necessary to be coordinated to achieve the basin’s sustainability
goal. ¢ The coordination agreement must provide both administrative and technical
coordination and consistency between all the GSPs. The collective submittals for the
basin are to be based upon consistent interpretations of the basin setting and utilize the
same data and methodologies. 4’ In the context of utilizing the same data and
methodologies, the coordination agreement must provide the following:*8

e a coordinated water budget for the basin, including groundwater extraction data,
surface water supply, total water use, and change in groundwater in storage;

4123 CCR § 355.4.

4223 CCR § 355.4(a)(1).

4323 CCR § 355.4(b)(1).

4423 CCR §§ 355.4(b)(5), 355.4(b)(6).

45 Water Code § 10727(b)(3).

46 23 CCR § 357.4; Water Code § 10727.6.

47 23 CCR § 357.4(a).

4 Water Code § 10727.6 et al: 23 CCR §§ 357.4(b)(3)(B), 357.4(b)(3)(C), 357.4(c).

California Department of Water Resources
Sustainable Groundwater Management Program Page 8 of 23



Plan Assessment Staff Report
San Joaquin Valley — Kaweah Subbasin (No. 5-022.11) January 28, 2022

e a sustainable yield for the basin, supported by a description of the undesirable
results for the basin, and an explanation of how the minimum thresholds and
measurable objectives defined by each GSP relate to those undesirable results,
based on information described in the basin setting; and

¢ an explanation of how the GSPs implemented together satisfy the requirements of
SGMA and are in substantial compliance with the GSP Regulations.

The Department is tasked with evaluating whether the GSPs, in coordination with one
another, conform with the required regulatory contents and are likely to achieve the
sustainability goal for the basin.*°

3.1 DEFICIENCY 1. THE PLAN DOES NOT SET SUSTAINABLE MANAGEMENT
CRITERIA FOR CHRONIC LOWERING OF GROUNDWATER LEVELS IN THE MANNER
REQUIRED BY SGMA AND THE GSP REGULATIONS

3.1.1 Background

SGMA defines an undesirable result for chronic lowering of groundwater levels as
lowering that causes “a significant and unreasonable depletion of supply if continued over
the planning and implementation horizon.”%® The GSP Regulations require minimum
thresholds for chronic lowering of groundwater levels to be based on “groundwater
elevation indicating a depletion of supply at a given location that may lead to undesirable
results.”!

3.1.2 Deficiency Details

The GSAs, collectively, have not defined undesirable results and minimum thresholds for
chronic lowering of groundwater levels in the manner required by SGMA and the GSP
Regulations. Specifically, the GSPs did not define metrics for undesirable results and
minimum thresholds based on the chronic lowering of groundwater levels indicating a
significant and unreasonable depletion of supply that the GSAs intend to avoid through
the implementation of the Plan, including the potential effects on the beneficial uses and
users in the Subbasin. Instead, the GSPs developed sustainable management criteria
based on an extrapolation of past groundwater level trends into the future. (See
Corrective Action 1a.)

The East Kaweah, Greater Kaweah, and Mid-Kaweah GSPs propose similar sustainable
management criteria for chronic lowering of groundwater levels, although with some
differences as discussed below. None of the GSPs describe specific effects of chronic
lowering of groundwater levels and depletion of supply that would be significant and
unreasonable and would therefore constitute an undesirable result. Instead, each GSP
states that an undesirable result would occur if groundwater level decline exceeded the

49 Water Code § 10733(b); 23 CCR § 355.4(b).
50 Water Code § 10721(x)(1).
5123 CCR § 354.28(c)(1).

California Department of Water Resources
Sustainable Groundwater Management Program Page 9 of 23



Plan Assessment Staff Report
San Joaquin Valley — Kaweah Subbasin (No. 5-022.11) January 28, 2022

defined minimum thresholds in more than a third of the Subbasin's representative
monitoring sites.5%? But those minimum thresholds are not based on the site-specific
depletion of supply that could lead to undesirable results. Instead, each GSP projects
groundwater levels based on an extrapolation of historical trends, predominantly
groundwater level declines, as observed at representative monitoring sites over a base
period. As described below, the GSPs then set the minimum threshold at groundwater
levels projected to occur in 2040.

The Mid-Kaweah GSP begins with a linear interpolation of observed trends at the
representative monitoring sites from 2006 to 2016, projects the trend to 2040, and uses
the projected 2040 groundwater levels to define minimum thresholds for groundwater
levels in the Subbasin.53 Mid-Kaweah does not describe the specific effects caused by
groundwater conditions occurring throughout the basin that would cause a significant and
unreasonable depletion of supply that would amount to an undesirable result of the
chronic lowering of groundwater levels. The Mid-Kaweah GSP allows for continued
groundwater decline through 2040 based on the rate of decline from 2006 through 2016,
rather than what the GSA determined and documented would be a significant and
unreasonable depletion of supply based on their consideration of beneficial uses and
users of groundwater.

The Greater Kaweah GSP is generally similar to the Mid-Kaweah GSP, beginning with a
linear interpolation of 2006 through 2016 conditions projected forward to 2040 to
determine the minimum threshold.%* In detail, however, Greater Kaweah appears to have
introduced unexplained changes in its approach to defining minimum thresholds relative
to the other GSPs. Based on a visual inspection of the individual well hydrographs®>® and
thresholds established for those wells, it appears that most wells do not use the projected
2040 level as the minimum threshold; many use a value higher than the 2040 projection,®
some use a value lower than the 2040 projection,5” and some use regressions based on
a different historical period.% Greater Kaweah does not explain why the graphical
representation of sustainable management criteria appear to differ from the written

52 East Kaweah GSP, Section 3.4.1.1, p. 166; Greater Kaweah GSP, Section 3.4.2, pp. 72-73; Mid-Kaweah
GSP, Section 3.2.2.1, p. 89.

53 Mid-Kaweah GSP, Executive Summary, p. 26, Appendix 5A —5.1.3, p. 1447.

54 See e.g., reference to the “2040 Intercept” in Table 5-1 (Greater Kaweah GSP p. 106) and the statement
that “The minimum thresholds were set at the water level projections for 2040 using the same trend in
groundwater levels from 2006 to 2016.” (Greater Kaweah GSP, p. 108).

55 Greater Kaweah GSP, Appendix 5B, pp. 1597-1633.

% See e.g., Well KSB-1428, where the projected 2040 groundwater level is approximately 25 feet below
mean sea level, but the minimum threshold is set to 43 feet above mean sea level (Greater Kaweah GSP,
p. 1611).

57 See e.g., Well KSB-0903, where the projected 2040 groundwater level is approximately 125 feet above
mean sea level, but the minimum threshold is set to 71 feet above mean sea level (Greater Kaweah GSP,
p. 1605).

%8 See e.g., Well KSB-1384, where the GSA appears to have developed a linear regression of data from
approximately 2012 through 2016 and used that to develop the minimum threshold of 47 feet below mean
sea level (Greater Kaweah GSP, p. 1609). Department staff note that this same well also appears in the
Mid-Kaweah GSP with a minimum threshold of 38 feet above mean sea level (Mid-Kaweah GSP, p. 1462).

California Department of Water Resources
Sustainable Groundwater Management Program Page 10 of 23



Plan Assessment Staff Report
San Joaquin Valley — Kaweah Subbasin (No. 5-022.11) January 28, 2022

description, or which should control in the case of a discrepancy. Nor does Greater
Kaweah explain why there should be any difference at all, or why their approach differs
from that of the other GSAs.

The East Kaweah GSP is also generally similar to the Mid-Kaweah and Greater Kaweah
GSPs, although the East Kaweah GSP states that the GSA used a linear interpolation of
groundwater levels from 1997 through 2017, projected out to 2040, as the minimum
threshold.®® The East Kaweah GSP also differs from the other two by adjusting some
minimum thresholds upwards in instances where the projected 2040 value would have
been below the bottom of the aquifer.®° The East Kaweah GSP also states that “each
baseline minimum threshold for groundwater levels was also evaluated by the [Technical
Advisory Committee] to determine if it was stringent enough by reviewing if the projected
level would cause excessive strain to the health of local communities, the agrarian
economy, or interconnected surface water areas” and that “more stringent minimum
thresholds were, and can continue to be, formed if deemed necessary by the [East
Kaweah GSA], its [Technical Advisory Committee], and relevant stakeholders.”®! The
consideration of impacts to beneficial uses and users of groundwater implied by the
evaluation of the Technical Advisory Committee represents the sort of analysis a GSA
should conduct when defining sustainable management criteria. However, the East
Kaweah GSP does not explain what factors were ultimately determined to be significant,
how the GSA considered them when defining undesirable results and minimum
thresholds, or how the undesirable results and minimum threshold established in the GSP
would prevent them from occurring.

All three GSPs base their groundwater level management regime on preventing the rate
of decline from becoming worse than the rate that existed in the 11 years immediately
preceding SGMA, but none document that the approach to setting undesirable results
and minimum thresholds for groundwater levels was related to, or based on, avoidance
of significant and unreasonable depletion of supply. Department staff do not consider that
this approach reasonably complies with the requirements of SGMA and the GSP
Regulations. Although some GSAs claim they do not intend to operate at the minimum
thresholds,%? those thresholds represent a critical regulatory “floor” for groundwater level
decline by defining when undesirable results occur. Defining minimum thresholds in a
manner that is not consistent with the requirements of the GSP Regulations is a
fundamental defect that will need to be corrected. (See Corrective Action 1a.)

The Kaweah GSAs describe the effects of their management criteria, including a
graphical depiction showing that 88 to 94 percent of domestic wells in four of the nine
hydrogeologic zones could experience groundwater levels below the top of the well’s
screen if groundwater levels approach the minimum thresholds.®® The GSPs state that

59 East Kaweah GSP, Section 3.4.1.2.1, p. 168.

60 East Kaweah GSP, Section 3.4.1.2.3, p. 170.

61 East Kaweah GSP, Section 3.4.1.2.3, p. 170.

62 Greater Kaweah GSP, Section 5.3.1, pp. 114-115; Mid-Kaweah GSP, Section 5.3.1.3, p. 129.
53 See e.g., Greater Kaweah GSP, Appendix 5C, pp. 1645, 1648, and 1657.

California Department of Water Resources
Sustainable Groundwater Management Program Page 11 of 23



Plan Assessment Staff Report
San Joaquin Valley — Kaweah Subbasin (No. 5-022.11) January 28, 2022

these effects are not significant and unreasonable® and provide “Well Impact Analysis
Hydrographs,” 85 which display a selection of groundwater well depths and the
corresponding projected groundwater levels at different plan implementation periods,
showing that the GSAs selected these conditions with awareness of the effects on
agricultural, domestic, and municipal supply wells. The GSAs conclude that the impacts
of continuing the pre-SGMA rate of groundwater level decline (e.g., increased lift costs or
total loss of production capacity for users that rely on welis for drinking water) before 2040
is generally an acceptable outcome because dealing with those effects historically has
been “standard practice”®® for groundwater users, comparable to dealing with economic
inflation.8” However, as discussed above, these effects were not first determined to be
less than significant, with minimum thresholds defined to maintain groundwater at or
above levels that would avoid worse conditions. The predicted impacts to wells were
determined only after the GSPs had established minimum thresholds at levels that would
cause those effects. In reassessing sustainable management criteria related to lowering
groundwater levels, the GSAs should first determine effects that would be significant and
unreasonable to the uses and users of groundwater in the Subbasin and then set
minimum thresholds to avoid those conditions. The GSAs refer to an impact assessment
program (Well Observation Program/ Drinking Water Wells Protection Program) for well
owners and those who rely on wells for water supply.®® If these programs are intended to
mitigate for impacts caused by declining groundwater levels, as part of the GSAs’
rationale for finding those impacts not significant and unreasonable, the GSPs will need
to provide more details on what the programs will achieve and how they will be
managed.%® (See Corrective Action 1b.)

Also, because changes in groundwater elevation can affect other sustainability indicators,
such as degradation of groundwater quality and subsidence, a GSP must demonstrate
that sustainable management criteria established for one sustainability indicator will not
produce undesirable results in any others. Department staff do not find evidence in the
GSP that indicates the GSAs considered the effects of the groundwater level sustainable
management criteria, which allow for continued lowering of levels, on the other
sustainable management criteria. In particular, Department staff did not find evidence that
the GSAs have considered the effect that continued groundwater level decline and, by
extension, reduction of groundwater storage could have on the degradation of
groundwater quality. As the GSAs revise their sustainable management criteria, they

64 East Kaweah GSP, Section 3.4.1.1, p. 167; Greater Kaweah GSP, Section 5.3.1, pp. 108 and 113-114;
Mid-Kaweah GSP, Section 5.3.1.3, p. 125.

85 Greater Kaweah GSP, Appendix 5C, pp. 1634-1659; Mid-Kaweah, Appendix 5C, pp. 1486-1511.

86 Greater Kaweah GSP, Section 7.3.6.1, p. 209.

57 Greater Kaweah GSP, Section 5.3.1, p. 108; Mid-Kaweah GSP, Section 5.3.1.3, pp. 125 and 1447, see
also discussions of the acceptability of impacts prior to 2040 in the East Kaweah GSP pp. 167 and 170.

68 East Kaweah GSP, Section 3.4.1.1, p. 167 and Section 5.3.2.1, p. 247; Greater Kaweah GSP, Section
7.3.6, pp. 209-212; Mid-Kaweah GSP, Section 7.4.8, pp. 197-199.

69 East Kaweah GSP, Section 3.4.1.1, p. 167 and Section 5.3.2.1, p. 247; Greater Kaweah GSP, Section
7.3.6, pp. 209-212; Mid-Kaweah GSP, Section 7.4.8, pp. 197-199.

California Department of Water Resources
Sustainable Groundwater Management Program Page 12 of 23



Plan Assessment Staff Report
San Joaquin Valley — Kaweah Subbasin (No. 5-022.11) January 28, 2022

should thoroughly address the potential effects of their groundwater level criteria on the
other sustainability indicators. (See Corrective Action 1a.)

31.3
a)

b)

Corrective Action 1

The GSAs must revise the Plan to define sustainable management criteria for the
chronic lowering of groundwater levels by utilizing information specific to the
Subbasin. The GSAs should first characterize undesirable results by describing
the significant and unreasonable effects that could be, or are being caused by,
lowering groundwater levels that the GSAs are seeking to avoid. The GSAs will
need to define the criteria used to determine when and where the effects of the
groundwater conditions will cause undesirable results and describe the potential
effects on the beneficial uses and users of groundwater that may occur or are
occurring from undesirable results, which analysis could include both physical and
economic impacts.

Next, the GSAs should revise minimum thresholds to quantify groundwater
conditions which represent a point in the Subbasin that, if exceeded, may cause
undesirable results. The Plan’s description of minimum thresholds should include
(1) information and criteria relied upon to establish and justify the minimum
thresholds supported by the basin setting and qualified by uncertainty in the
understanding of the basin setting; (2) the relationship between these minimum
thresholds and each sustainability indicator to show how these basin conditions
would avoid undesirable results for each sustainability indicator; (3) a technical
description explaining how operating the Subbasin to the proposed minimum
thresholds would not be expected to cause undesirable results in adjacent basins
or affect the ability of adjacent basins to achieve their sustainability goals; and (4)
how the minimum thresholds may affect the interests of beneficial uses and users
of groundwater or land uses and property interests. The GSAs should define the
potential effects of lowered groundwater levels that their GSPs state could become
an undesirable result such as: “reduced irrigation water supplies for agriculture and
for municipal systems through loss of well capacity, loss or degradations of water
supplies for smaller community water systems and domestic wells due to well
failures, increased energy consumption due to lowered water levels, and the
adverse economic consequences of the aforementioned effects such as increased
energy usage to extract groundwater from deeper levels.””°

If the GSAs intend to rely on mitigation actions to address impacts that would occur
as a result of the continued lowering of groundwater levels as a means to support
the reasonableness of their sustainable management criteria, then the GSPs
should be revised to include specific details of the mitigation measures that will be
enacted, including the schedule for implementation and other details that will allow
the Department to assess their feasibility and likely effectiveness.

70 Greater Kaweah GSP, Section 3.4.2,p. 73

California Department of Water Resources
Sustainable Groundwater Management Program Page 13 of 23



Plan Assessment Staff Report
San Joaquin Valley — Kaweah Subbasin (No. 5-022.11) January 28, 2022

3.2 DEFICIENCY 2. THE PLAN DOES DO NOT SET SUSTAINABLE MANAGEMENT
CRITERIA FOR SUBSIDENCE IN THE MANNER REQUIRED BY SGMA AND THE
GSP REGULATIONS

3.2.1 Background

SGMA defines an undesirable result for subsidence as that which causes “significant and
unreasonable land subsidence that substantially interferes with surface land uses.””" The
GSP Regulations require minimum thresholds for subsidence to be based on the “rate
and extent of subsidence that substantially interferes with surface land uses and may lead
to undesirable results.””?

3.2.2 Deficiency Details

Similar to Deficiency 1, above, the GSAs have not defined undesirable results and
minimum thresholds for subsidence in a manner consistent with SGMA and the GSP
Regulations. Specifically, Greater Kaweah and Mid-Kaweah did not define metrics for
undesirable results and minimum thresholds based on the amount of subsidence that
would substantially interfere with land surface uses, informed by, and in consideration of,
the relevant and applicable land surface uses and users in their part of the Subbasin.
Instead, as with groundwater elevation, the Greater Kaweah and Mid-Kaweah GSAs
developed subsidence criteria based on a continuation of past groundwater management
practices extended into the future. Department staff believe this is a fundamental flaw
with the Plan that needs to be corrected immediately because of the potential harm that
could occur to the interests of beneficial uses and users of groundwater and land surface
users in the near term if not addressed promptly. Additionally, correcting this deficiency
may necessitate other changes to the GSPs and coordination agreement, such as the
timing and types of projects and management actions.

The Greater Kaweah and Mid-Kaweah GSPs are broadly similar in establishing
subsidence sustainable management criteria. Similar to the approach for setting
groundwater level thresholds, as described above, those GSPs projected groundwater
levels based on an extrapolation of declining groundwater levels observed at
representative monitoring sites over several previous years to calculate the projected
storage reduction and estimate projected subsidence.” These projections were applied
at the two geographically extreme Subbasin subsidence monitoring stations: the
Corcoran (CRCN) station located in the Tulare Lake Subbasin, just outside the southwest

' Water Code § 10721(x)(5).
7223 CCR § 354.28(c)(5).
3 Greater Kaweah GSP, Section 5.5.1, pp. 122-123; Mid-Kaweah GSP, Section 5.3.4.3, pp. 137-138.

California Department of Water Resources
Sustainable Groundwater Management Program Page 14 of 23



Plan Assessment Staff Report
San Joaquin Valley — Kaweah Subbasin (No. 5-022.11) January 28, 2022

portion of the Kaweah Subbasin and the P566 station’ located in the northeast portion
of the Subbasin. Measurable objectives for the Mid-Kaweah and Greater Kaweah GSPs
were defined similarly, and the measurable objective subsidence rates are generally one-
half of the minimum threshold rates.”®

Because Mid-Kaweah and Greater Kaweah did not define subsidence criteria based on
conditions that would substantially interfere with land surface uses and users in the
Subbasin, Department staff have no basis for evaluating whether continued subsidence
predicted by the Plans (potentially 15 feet in the next 20 years in the southwest portion of
the Subbasin) would cause significant and unreasonable impacts to land surface uses.’®
The GSAs should understand, through efforts such as coordination and technical studies,
the amount of subsidence that would be significant and unreasonable based on a
substantial interference with groundwater and land surface beneficial uses and users.
That understanding would inform not only the selection of sustainable management
criteria but also the types and timing of projects and management actions that would be
needed to avoid the significant and unreasonable effects. Department staff do not find
evidence in the Mid-Kaweah and Greater Kaweah GSPs that indicates the GSAs
considered the interests of beneficial users and uses of groundwater in defining
undesirable results or establishing minimum thresholds. Department staff therefore are
unable to assess whether those GSAs have established sustainable management criteria
based on a commensurate level of understanding of the basin setting or whether the
interests of beneficial uses and users have been considered. (See Corrective Action 2a.)

The East Kaweah GSP better comports with expectations based on the GSP Regulations
to develop sustainable management criteria for subsidence. The East Kaweah GSP
states that an undesirable result would occur if there were “significant loss of functionality
of a structure or a facility to the point that, due to subsidence, the feature cannot be
operated as designed requiring either retrofitting or replacement.””” The East Kaweah
GSP identified the Friant-Kern Canal as critical infrastructure for users in the GSA area
and determined that a loss of more than 10 percent of its capacity would be
unacceptable.”® The East Kaweah GSP identified that subsidence over 9.5 inches,

74 Neither the Greater Kaweah nor Mid-Kaweah GSP is consistent regarding the future subsidence rates in
the vicinity of station P566 and in the northeast portion of the Subbasin. Greater Kaweah's GSP states in a
table that the minimum threshold for its northeastern monitoring sites is 1.0 inch per year (Greater Kaweah
GSP, Table 5-4, p. 123), implying a maximum of 20 inches over the 20-year implementation period.
However, a subsequent figure shows that the minimum threshold is 24 inches of cumulative subsidence
over the 20-year period, implying a rate of 1.2 inches per year (Greater Kaweah GSP, Figure 5-5, p. 124).
Mid-Kaweah’s GSP incorporates the P566 station directly as a representative monitoring site and sets the
minimum threshold at 1.2 inches per year (Mid-Kaweah GSP, Table 5-4, p. 145) although earlier portions
of the text indicate that the subsidence rate is 1.0 inches per year (Mid-Kaweah GSP, p. 137).

7S Greater Kaweah GSP, Sections 5.5.1 and 5.5.2, Figure 5-5, and Figure 5-6 (also labeled Figure 5-8), pp.
124-125; Mid-Kaweah GSP, Section 5.4.4 and Table 5-4, pp. 144-145 and Figure 5-4, p. 147.

76 Mid-Kaweah GSP, Section 5.3.4, pp. 135-138; Greater Kaweah GSP, Section 5.5, pp. 120-125.

77 East Kaweah GSP, Section 3.4.3.1.1, p. 182.

8 East Kaweah GSP, Section 3.4.3.2.3, p. 184.

California Department of Water Resources
Sustainable Groundwater Management Program Page 15 of 23



Plan Assessment Staff Report
San Joaquin Valley — Kaweah Subbasin (No. 5-022.11) January 28, 2022

cumulatively, would result in the 10 percent loss in capacity and, therefore, used 9.5
inches of cumulative subsidence as the minimum threshold.

The differences between Greater Kaweah and East Kaweah GSPs creates the potential
for inconsistency in groundwater management between the Subbasins GSPs. A portion
of the Greater Kaweah GSP area bisects the East Kaweah GSP area in the vicinity of the
Friant Kern Canal (see Figure 1).

Minimum Threshold
9.5 inches total

Minimum Threshold
1.0 or 1.2 inches per
year (20 or 24 inches

during implementation)

% Subsidence Monitoring East Kaweah GSA
. Subsidence Monitoring Greater Kaweah GSA
v Friant Kern Canal
| East Kaweah GSA
[T Greater Kaweah GSA
I Mid-Kaweah GSA

Greater Kaweah'’s subsidence minimum thresholds in this area allow for 1.0 to 1.2 inches
per year of subsidence, or 20 to 24 inches cumulatively over the 20-year implementation
period. Neither the East Kaweah nor the Greater Kaweah GSPs nor the Kaweah
Subbasin Coordination Agreement explain how up to 24 inches of subsidence in the
Greater Kaweah area can be accommodated without interfering with the 9.5-inch limit set
by East Kaweah to protect the conveyance capacity of the Friant-Kern Canal. The GSPs
will need to reconcile this apparent discrepancy. (See Corrective Action 2b.)

California Department of Water Resources
Sustainable Groundwater Management Program Page 16 of 23



Plan Assessment Staff Report
San Joaquin Valley — Kaweah Subbasin (No. 5-022.11) January 28, 2022

3.2.3 Corrective Action 2

a) Mid-Kaweah and Greater Kaweah must define sustainable management criteria
for land subsidence in the manner required by SGMA and the GSP Regulations.
The GSAs should develop criteria, including minimum thresholds, measurable
objectives, interim milestones, and undesirable results based on the amount of
subsidence that would substantially interfere with land surface uses. Developed
criteria should be supported with information on the effects of subsidence on land
surface beneficial uses and users and the amount of subsidence that would
substantially interfere with those uses and users.

b) Following changes to the GSPs described in Corrective Action 2a, Greater Kaweah
also must explain how their minimum thresholds in the vicinity of identified critical
infrastructure (i.e., the Friant Kern Canal) will not substantially interfere with the
Canal's use (identified by East Kaweah GSA as an undesirable result). Address
how the amount of potential cumulative subsidence allowed for by Greater
Kaweah's subsidence rates, which currently exceeds the amount identified by East
Kaweah that would cause an undesirable result, are compatible or provide revised
rates for the eastern portion of the Subbasin that are compatible.

3.3 DEfFiIcCiENCY 3. THE PLAN DOES NOT CONSISTENTLY IDENTIFY
INTERCONNECTED SURFACE WATER SYSTEMS, OR THE QUANTITY AND TIMING
OF DEPLETION OF THOSE SYSTEMS DUE TO GROUNDWATER USE. THE PLAN
DOES NOT CONSISTENTLY DEFINE SUSTAINABLE MANAGEMENT CRITERIA FOR
DEPLETION OF INTERCONNECTED SURFACE WATER IN THE MANNER REQUIRED
BY THE GSP REGULATIONS.

3.3.1 Background

The GSP Regulations require a GSP to identify interconnected surface water systems in
the basin and evaluate the quantity and timing of depletions of those systems using the
best available information.”®

The GSP Regulations state that a GSA that is able to demonstrate one or more
sustainability indicators are not present and are not likely to occur in the basin is not
required to develop sustainable management criteria for those indicators.8° Absent an
explanation of why a sustainability indicator is inapplicable, the Department assumes all
sustainability indicators apply.8' Demonstration of applicability (or non-applicability) of
sustainability indicators must be supported by best available information and science and
should be provided in descriptions throughout the GSP (e.g., information describing basin
setting, discussion of the interests of beneficial users and uses of groundwater).

7923 CCR §§ 354.28(c)(6)(A), 354.28(c)(6)(B).

80 23 CCR §§ 354.26(d), 354.28(e).

8" DWR Best Management Practices for the Sustainable Management of Groundwater: Sustainable
Management Criteria (DRAFT), November 2017.

California Department of Water Resources
Sustainable Groundwater Management Program Page 17 of 23



Plan Assessment Staff Report
San Joaquin Valley — Kaweah Subbasin (No. 5-022.11) January 28, 2022

The Department’s assessment of a GSP’s likelihood to achieve its sustainability goal for
its basin is based, in part, on whether a GSP provides sufficiently detailed and reasonable
supporting information and analysis for all applicable indicators. The GSP Regulations
require the Department to evaluate whether establishment of sustainable management
criteria is commensurate with the level of understanding of the basin setting.3?

The GSP Regulations require that the minimum thresholds for depletions of
interconnected surface water be the rate or volume of surface water depletions caused
by groundwater use that has adverse impacts on beneficial uses of the surface water and
may lead to undesirable results. The minimum threshold established for depletions of
interconnected surface water shall be supported by the following:33

e The location, quantity, and timing of depletions of interconnected surface water.8*

¢ A description of the groundwater and surface water model used to quantify surface
water depletion. If a numerical groundwater and surface water model is not used
to quantify surface water depletion, the Plan shall identify and describe an equally
effective method, tool, or analytical model to accomplish the requirements of this
Paragraph.8s

3.3.2 Deficiency Details

The Plan for the Subbasin contains conflicting statements about the presence and
location of interconnected surface waters. The Plan identifies the presence of
interconnected surface water, but has not demonstrated the relationship between
groundwater use and stream depletion or developed sustainable management criteria for
that depletion, as required by SGMA and the GSP Regulations.

The GSAs rely on the Coordination Agreement and its appendices to, among other things,
provide common information on conditions in the Subbasin. Appendix 1 of the
Coordination Agreement, entitled “Basin Setting Report,” includes a brief discussion of
interconnected surface water but lacks specific identification of interconnected surface
water systems or the quantity and timing of the depletion of those systems due to
groundwater use.® The Coordination Agreement states that “in general, the vast majority
of the natural streams and manmade ditches (channels) throughout the Subbasin are
considered losing channels throughout the year with considerable vertical separation
between the channels and groundwater” but that “streams located in the eastern portion
of the Subbasin, generally between the Friant Kern Canal eastward to McKay Point ... are
more likely to be relatively neutral to gaining stream reaches during limited times of
year."®” The Coordination Agreement does not provide specific data or analysis with

82 23 CCR § 355.4(b)(3).

8323 CCR § 354.28 (c)(6).

84 23 CCR § 354.28 (c)(B)(A).

85 23 CCR § 354.28 (c)(6)(B).

86 Kaweah Coordination Agreement, Appendix 1, Section 2.9, p. 165.

87 Kaweah Coordination Agreement, Appendix 1, Section 2.9, p. 165; see also Kaweah Coordination
Agreement, Appendix 1, Section 2.2.7.3, p. 52.

California Department of Water Resources
Sustainable Groundwater Management Program Page 18 of 23



Plan Assessment Staff Report
San Joaquin Valley — Kaweah Subbasin (No. 5-022.11) January 28, 2022

which to verify those statements, including a comparison of near-stream groundwater
conditions that would indicate whether streams were interconnected, and the timing of
that interconnection. The Coordination Agreement identifies lack of near-stream
information as a data gap for the Greater Kaweah® and East Kaweah® GSA areas,
which appear to be the two GSAs covering portions of the Subbasin that could have
interconnected surface water bodies.

Despite the acknowledgment that interconnected surface water is present in a portion of
the Subbasin, Appendix 6 of the Coordination Agreement, which discusses the Subbasin-
wide approach to the sustainability goal and undesirable results, indicates in several
locations that the GSAs did not develop sustainable management criteria®® and states
that “no interconnected surface waters as defined in SGMA have been identified in any
Kaweah Subbasin GSAs as described more thoroughly in the basin setting.” ®
Department staff interpret the reference to the “basin setting” to refer the Appendix 1 of
the Coordination Agreement, which, as noted above, does indicate that interconnected
surface water is present in the eastern portion of the Subbasin.

Department staff note that, for a GSA to determine that undesirable results and other
criteria are not required, the GSP Regulations call for the GSA to demonstrate that the
undesirable result is both not present and not likely to occur. If the GSA is uncertain about
the extent to which interconnected surface water is present, it is not appropriate to dismiss
the development of sustainable management criteria (i.e., absence of evidence is not
evidence of absence).

Department staff could not find any such demonstration in the Coordination Agreement
or the Greater Kaweah GSP, as described below. The Greater Kaweah GSP documents
areas with likely interconnected surface water, as does the Coordination Agreement,®?
but Greater Kaweah has not developed sustainable management criteria for
interconnected surface water.% The Greater Kaweah GSP states that a web-based
interactive map provided by the Department showed that as of Fall 2014, groundwater
levels were greater than 30 feet below ground surface throughout the Subbasin, and used
that as evidence for lack of significant interconnection of surface water and
groundwater. °®* While Department staff acknowledge the available Department-
generated contours do show depths greater than 30 feet, those contours do not extend
to the complete eastern edge of the Subbasin, likely because there was insufficient data.
Areas without coverage by those contours are some of the same areas that the

88 Kaweah Coordination Agreement, Appendix 5, pp. 449, 451, and 453.

8 Kaweah Coordination Agreement, Appendix 5, pp. 458, 464-465.

% Kaweah Coordination Agreement, Appendix 6, Section 6-8, p .478.

91 Kaweah Coordination Agreement, Appendix 6, Section 6.8, p. 478.

92 Greater Kaweah GSP, Figure 16, p. 790; Greater Kaweah GSP, Figure 17, p. 791; Greater Kaweah
GSP, Figure 19, p. 793; Kaweah Coordination Agreement, Appendix 1, Section 2.9, p. 165; see also
Kaweah Coordination Agreement, Appendix 1, Section 2.2.7.3, p. 52.

93 Kaweah Coordination Agreement, Appendix 6, Section 6.8, p. 478; Greater Kaweah GSP, Section 3.8,
p. 78.

94 Greater Kaweah GSP, Section 2.2, p. 63.

California Department of Water Resources
Sustainable Groundwater Management Program Page 19 of 23



Plan Assessment Staff Report
San Joaquin Valley — Kaweah Subbasin (No. 5-022.11) January 28, 2022

Coordination Agreement indicates would likely have interconnection. Department staff
conclude that Greater Kaweah has not demonstrated that interconnected surface water
is not present in their GSP area. Therefore, Department staff disagree with their approach
to “establish non-applicability” and their conclusion that sustainable management criteria
are not applicable and not required. (See Corrective Action 3a.)

East Kaweah also identifies the eastern portion of the Subbasin as most likely to contain
surface water bodies that are interconnected with groundwater, including the Kaweah
River, Cottonwood Creek, Lewis Creek, and Frazier Creek.%® The GSP states that, based
on the GSA’s understanding of those surface water bodies and “limited impacts of
groundwater pumping on interconnected surface water bodies [sic] streamflow, it was
determined that focusing the minimum threshold on groundwater levels would be
appropriate for evaluating any undesirable effects on surface water connection.” %
Therefore, East Kaweah uses the same minimum thresholds developed for groundwater
levels, as described in Deficiency 1 above, as proxies for minimum thresholds for the
depletion of interconnected surface water. Department staff note that when GSAs choose
to use groundwater elevation thresholds as a proxy for another indicator, the GSP
Regulations require a demonstration “that the representative [groundwater elevation]
value is a reasonable proxy for multiple individual minimum thresholds as supported by
adequate evidence.”®” Department staff did not find any such demonstration by East
Kaweah to show that the groundwater level thresholds are a reasonable proxy for the
“rate or volume of surface water depletions caused by groundwater use that has adverse
impacts on beneficial uses of the surface water and may lead to undesirable results.”?8

East Kaweah identifies interconnected surface water as a data gap but provides little
detail about their proposed approach or schedule to obtain sufficient understanding to
address the required elements of the GSP Regulations. ldentified actions include
streamflow monitoring, “new proposed monitoring”®® (which Department staff interpret to
refer to additional groundwater monitoring, though it is unclear), and that the GSA is “likely
to perform more studies and field verification by qualified professionals.”'® The GSP
states that East Kaweabh intends to fili the gaps within five years.®! Department staff note
that East Kaweah'’s discussion of addressing data gaps does not describe how or when
the GSA would use the newly obtained information to demonstrate that groundwater
levels are a reasonable proxy for the depletion of interconnected surface water.

Department staff conclude that the East Kaweah GSP does not sufficiently demonstrate
that the minimum thresholds for chronic lowering of groundwater levels are a reasonable
proxy for the rate and volume of surface water depletion caused by groundwater use that

9 East Kaweah GSP, Section 3.4.1.2.2, p. 169.
9 East Kaweah GSP, Section 3.4.1.2.2, p. 169.
97 23 CCR § 354.28(d).

98 23 CCR § 354.28(c)(6).

% East Kaweah GSP, Section 4.7.3.3, p. 209.
100 East Kaweah GSP, Section 2.6, p. 149.

101 East Kaweah GSP, Section 2.6, p. 149.

California Department of Water Resources
Sustainable Groundwater Management Program Page 20 of 23



Plan Assessment Staff Report
San Joaquin Valley — Kaweah Subbasin (No. 5-022.11) January 28, 2022

could lead to undesirable results. While the East Kaweah GSP does identify that
additional data may be collected, there is no mention of a study or other efforts specifically
for the purpose of demonstrating the reasonableness or appropriateness of using the
GSP’s groundwater level thresholds as a proxy for the depletion of interconnected surface
water. (See Corrective Action 3b.)

While Department staff acknowledge that only a small portion of the Subbasin’s land area
is likely to contain interconnected surface waters, staff also note that, with the planned
decreases in groundwater levels allowed for by the Plan’s management regime, it is
reasonable to conclude that the extent and temporal duration of interconnected reaches
are likely to decrease. The Plan’s water year 2020 annual report indicated that
groundwater levels on the eastern side of the Subbasin have fallen below the Plan’s
measurable objectives and interim milestones. Without a thorough and timely plan to
understand and manage the Subbasin for the depletion of interconnected surface water,
beneficial uses or users could be impacted by the loss of interconnection, perhaps
irreparably, or reduction of streamflow caused by groundwater use. Therefore,
Department staff recommend this deficiency be addressed promptly through addressing
the corrective actions described below.

3.3.3 Corrective Action 3
Greater Kaweah and East Kaweah must define sustainable management criteria for
interconnected surface water in the manner required by SGMA and the GSP Regulations.

a) Having identified that interconnected surface waters are present in their GSP area,
and absent a demonstration that undesirable results related to depletion of
interconnected surface water due to groundwater use are not present and not likely
to occur, Greater Kaweah should develop sustainable management criteria for
depletion of interconnected surface water consistent with the requirements of
SGMA and the GSP Regulations. If the GSA does not have sufficient information
to develop specific sustainable management criteria at this time, then they should
properly identify depletion of interconnected surface water as a data gap and
should provide a plan to close the data gap as soon as practical, with significant
progress by the first required periodic evaluation. The plan to address the data gap
should specifically outline how and when the GSA will:

1. Acquire or develop data and tools to identify interconnected surface water
reaches, and the quantity and timing of the depletion of interconnected
surface water due to groundwater use for interconnected surface water
systems identified in the Plan.

2. Develop sustainable management criteria based on the rate or volume of
surface water depletions caused by groundwater use that has adverse
impacts on beneficial uses and users of surface water.

East Kaweah should provide information to demonstrate that their selected
groundwater level thresholds are a reasonable proxy for the depletion of

California Department of Water Resources
Sustainable Groundwater Management Program Page 21 of 23



Plan Assessment Staff Report
San Joaquin Valley — Kaweah Subbasin (No. 5-022.11) January 28, 2022

interconnected surface water, as required by the GSP Regulations. If this
information is a data gap then it should be properly identified as such, and a plan
and schedule to address this data gap should be identified to acquire this
information, similar to the data gap discussion in Corrective Action 3a, above.

California Department of Water Resources
Sustainable Groundwater Management Program Page 22 of 23



Plan Assessment Staff Report
San Joaquin Valley — Kaweah Subbasin (No. 5-022.11) January 28, 2022

4 STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Department staff believe that the deficiencies identified in this assessment should
preclude approval of the Plan for the Kaweah Subbasin. Department staff recommend
that the Plan be determined incomplete.

California Department of Water Resources
Sustainable Groundwater Management Program Page 23 of 23

51



	02.28.2022 EKGSA Special BOD Agenda revised 2.24.pdf
	EKGSA.pdf



